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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
FTEHMES (@)

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”), I am
pleased to present to the shareholders the annual report of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2019.

RESULTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2019, the Group recorded a total
revenue of HK$106,206,000 (2018: HK$113,030,000) and gross
profit of HK$80,799,000 (2018: HK$88,714,000), both showing
mild decrease of 6% and 9% respectively compared with those of the
previous year. These results were attributable to the rental income of
investment properties of the Group denominated in renminbi yuan
(“RMB”), with gross profit margin at 76% (2018: 78%).

During the year under review, the Group accounted for other
income, gains or losses of HK$15,894,000 (2018: HK$24,482,000),
mainly derived from bank and imputed interest income in the sum
of HK$18,585,000 (2018: HK$17,339,000) with net exchange loss
of HK$5,841,000 (2018: net exchange gain of HK$4,006,000) due
to the fluctuation of RMB devaluation against Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD?”) in the year. In addition, the Group recognized an aggregate
increase in the fair value of the investment properties in the amount
of HK$3,560,000 (2018: HK$88,171,000) under subdued market
sentiment. And the administrative expenses for the year amounted to
HK$43,730,000 (2018: HK$40,461,000).

After taking into account of the above significant decline in
appreciation of the fair value of the investment properties together
with the related tax effect and the above devaluation of RMB in
the year, the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company was HK$48,730,000 (2018: HK$126,125,000), which
decreased by 61% from that of the previous year, with basic earnings
per share of HK$0.215 (2018: HK$0.560).

Meanwhile, there was other comprehensive expense in the
sum of HK$91,249,000 (2018: other comprehensive income of
HK$58,204,000) due to RMB devaluation of about 4% (2018:
RMB appreciation of about 3%) against HKD resulting in exchange
difference on currency translation to presentation currency in
HKD from functional currency in RMB in the year, and the total
comprehensive expense attributable to shareholders of the Company
amounted to HK$40,919,000 (2018: the total comprehensive income
of HK$183,179,000).

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 4 Hong Kong cents (2018: 4 Hong Kong cents) per share to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 20 December 2019. Together
with the interim dividend of 3 Hong Kong cents per share which
were paid to the shareholders of the Company during the year, the
total dividend for the year amounts to a total of 7 Hong Kong cents
per share. Subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 29
November 2019, the warrants for the final dividend are expected to be
despatched to those entitled on or about Friday, 3 January 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the operating segments of the Group
consisted of property rental and property sales in the mainland China.
The rental segment of investment properties in Beijing and Shanghai,
which was the major segment assets of the Group with modest rental
performance all denominated in RMB under slowing growth of
economy, remained as the key and solid contributor of revenue and
results of the Group.

The core rental business of investment properties of the Group, which
were quality offices in Pudong in Shanghai and well-established mall
together with carparks in Chaoyang District in Beijing with asset value
in an aggregate of RMB1,804,200,000 (2018: RMB1,801,100,000),
performed moderately in the year with total revenue of property
rental of RMB92,474,000 (2018: RMB93,967,000), showing a slight
decrease of 2% as compared with that of last year. Such rental income
presented in the financial statements in the sum of HK$106,206,000
(2018: HK$113,030,000) and contributed to all (2018: all) of the total
turnover of the Group.

Amid subdued market sentiment, the fair value of these investment
properties of the Group comprising shopping mall and carparks
in Beijing and office units in Shanghai appreciated in the sum
of RMB3,100,000 (2018: RMB73,300,000), translating into
HK$3,560,000 (2018: HK$88,171,000) for the year. Due to significant
decline in appreciation of fair value of these investment properties, the
segment results of property rental reported a profit of RMB73,596,000
(2018: RMB147,984,000), translating into HK$84,525,000 (2018:
HK$178,006,000) which shows a significant drop of 53% as
compared with last year. Disregarding changes in fair value of these
investment properties, the underlying segment results would have been
RMB70,496,000 (2018: RMB74,684,000), showing a mild drop of 6%
as compared with last year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
FTEHMES (@)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In Beijing, the well-established community mall of the Group
known as “Uptown Mall” with focus on mass-market and mid-range
retailers maintained high occupancy in the year with improved rental
performance. The rental income generated from the well-established
community mall (including car parks) of the Group in Chaoyang
District improved whereas the average occupancy rate was about 91%
(2018: 95%) throughout the year. In addition, the rental income of this
segment in the year totalled RMB32,019,000 (2018: RMB30,661,000)
showing a mild increase of 4% as compared with that of last year
and translating into HK$36,774,000 (2018: HK$36,881,000) and
accounted for 35% (2018: 33%) of the total revenue of the Group.
The fair value of these investment properties decreased in the sum
of RMBS,900,000 (2018: increased by RMB21,300,000), translating
into HK$10,222,000 (2018: increased by HK$25,621,000). Thereby, a
profit of HK$11,003,000 (2018: HK$48,846,000) was recorded in this
segment results in the year, after taking into account of depreciation
in fair value, denoting a substantial drop of 77% as compared with
that of the last year. Disregarding changes in fair value of these
investment properties, the underlying segment results would have been
RMB18,480,000 (2018: RMB19,308,000), showing a mild drop of 4%
as compared with the last year. Due to limited residential units held
for sale by the Group in Beijing, there was nil (2018: nil) proceeds
of property sales of residential units held by the Group at “Chaoyang
Garden” incurring an administrative loss of HK$198,000 (2018:
HK$243,000) in this segment results of property sales in the year.

In Shanghai, overall leasing of office market in prime business district
in Pudong faced fierce competition, which subdued rental due to
abundant new supply of office, decentralized non-prime office market
and sluggish leasing demand for office under economic slowdown
in the PRC. The quality offices of the Group known as “Eton Place”
which is in the prominent financial location of Little Lujiazui in
Pudong attained an average occupancy rate of about 90% (2018:
96%) with improving rental rate in the year. As a whole, there was
decreased rental performance during the year and the rental income
was in the sum of RMB60,454,000 (2018: RMB63,306,000), showing
a mild decrease of 5% from that of last year and translating into
HK$69,432,000 (2018: HK$76,149,000) which shared 65% (2018:
67%) of the total revenue of the Group in the year. The fair value of
these investment properties appreciated in the sum of RMB12,000,000
(2018: RMB52,000,000), translating into HK$13,782,000 (2018:
HK$62,550,000). Thereby, this segment results recorded a total
profit of HK$73,522,000 (2018: HK$129,160,000) in the year and,
taking into account of significantly reduced appreciation in fair value,
denoting a significant drop of 43% as compared with that of last year.
Disregarding changes in fair value of these investment properties, the
underlying segment results would have been RMB52,016,000 (2018:
RMB55,376,000), showing a mild drop of 6% as compared with the
last year.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (continued)
FTEHREE (@)

AN W)

JP 1] AR BE A TR 2 s A S R A
A (YN | > AN R 5F A 49% e REHE 48 2 &
BAR ) T — WAL TR I L [ R A 5
Bt (B L)) BADEST R =%
—NELACRBMREER (THHED
7 phy B3 g B e T R A 2 W AL (1
a) EH o

A —F - JUAENA TR BT AR Pk
RO HEZERM RS > fE— L ERYI
EHERARPAMAZ T -FHFE—H -

AL N > A S B A T A R R 15 BY
TRBE DR AR o LA > ARLEEY
T H b L3 AL - A B BN B Kb T &
HRA S RN A REE LB A T
B SR 20 [ B AR PR IE A - B RS R
AREEAEAREE (TRE]D > =LA 22
BA LA E BA LA E SR
HEBI A 22 E o AR RS E R
ZitwcBA T ER ([ RBER] CIE
KMEH 7 FFE o WS & AT ) R AR
BUA - 003 B R 58 THE A ST R AR
AR B A% - YN R EIR B RE RS
LD EL R (1 B 4% Pl g 1) B9 48 © 5T 52
o i 40 2 S A 1 B R (T T )
ARFENER —F—FENA+—BAE (Th
WEBRAN] -

R A% o e 3 o I 2 SRR A R R R
o E MR B BLA LA ()Y EE B
FrAMBLA LA (G 2 R+ B s ) i
Fhy I 3 1) R ) B BS 5 o KR A PR I
1] 1| 2 ol 48 02 74 4R ¥ R A8 DUSR ~ e 1130
DA~ ol B DAY B B2 i B DL L 2 — W R
EYIFE L0 5 R A B 2 bt (T b)) - 3
M 75 ST R A B R s @I 3 B AG T B
A LB (E 36 W 1 B A ) i Y1
R A B R B 28 > T B JH B ST % fhh wlk
JIT 0 2 A R B Ak A > SN A R B AT S A
PAVE PR BUA T4t b2 M R SRy -

SER-AESBJUEEER | N REARA

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the year under review, Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises
Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”, a joint venture in which the Company holds 49%
of equity interests), which owned or occupied a piece of land located
in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the “Existing Land”),
continued its proceedings of compulsory liquidation (the “Liquidation”)
which commenced in July 2016 under supervision of the PRC court
and management of a liquidation committee (the “Liquidation
Committee”) as nominated by the PRC court.

As announced on 5 August 2019, the PRC court accepted the
application lodged by the Liquidation Committee to further extend the
period of Liquidation of Zhen Wah for six months up to January 2020.

In the year, the Group continued to closely monitor the liquidation
proceedings of Zhen Wah with the assistance of its legal advisers. In
addition, the Group carried on working actively with the Liquidation
Committee, relevant official authorities and Chinese joint venture
partner regarding the liquidation and the proposal for re-zoning/swap of
the Existing Land, compensation for demolition, relocation and increase
of gross developable area of the Existing Land (the “Proposal”). Almost
all of the ex-tenants/occupiers of the Existing Land have been agreed
for relocation and delivered vacant possession. The Proposal has been
assessed officially for swap of the Existing Land (the “Land Swap”)
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. After planning
and adjustment in alignment with the recently proposed city planning
of an opera house project near the Existing Land, the it b4 f& 1 &%
# (Land Resumption Compensation Agreement) for the Land Swap
(the “Agreement”) has been entered into between EII TR FIF [ 25
RS HLR (Nanshan Administration of Shenzhen Municipal
Bureau of Planning and Natural Resources) (the “Bureau”) and Zhen
Wah, as announced by the Company on 11 September 2019 (the “Land
Swap Announcement”).

Pursuant to the Agreement, Zhen Wah and the Bureau agreed to the
Land Swap such that the Existing Land comprising (1) the Existing
Land A (as defined in the Land Swap Announcement) as owned by
Zhen Wah will be surrendered by Zhen Wah to the Bureau in return
for a piece of land in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
located to the east of &4 K#4 (Hou Hai Avenue), to the south of I
13874 (Shekou New Street), to the west of /10> (Zhong Xin Road)
and to the north of 22 % (Wang Hai Road) (the “New Land”), to be
granted by the Bureau to Zhen Wah without additional land premium
payable and (2) the Existing Land B (as defined in the Land Swap
Announcement) as occupied by Zhen Wah will be surrendered by
Zhen Wah to the Bureau, both subject to the terms and conditions as
set out therein with compensation under negotiation for the clearance
of buildings and erections on the Existing Land.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

According to the Agreement, the New Land will have a land site area
of approximately 111,000 square metres with land usage as residential,
commercial including office and supporting ancillary facilities and a
total developable gross floor area of approximately 395,000 square
metres for multi-purpose development.

Moreover, Zhen Wah has to make appropriate applications required
for the Land Swap in accordance with the relevant laws, regulations
and rules of the PRC applicable to Zhen Wah, including but not
limited to the adjustment of the statutory plans, the approval of
JA M7 % 1& (Land Use Plan) and % MBI #5F 00 3% (Land
Construction Planning Permit) and the execution of - 3f# Ffi#
A A#E (Land Use Rights Grant Contract) (the “Land Contract”),
which applications are to be made after clearance and delivery of the
Existing Land with vacant possession by Zhen Wah to the Bureau
within a period which has been mutually negotiated and agreed
between Zhen Wah and the Bureau. Accordingly, there is no assurance
that further significant delay and impediments to the Land Swap, or to
the approval for the relevant applications and execution of the Land

Contract will not arise.

Meanwhile, based on the PRC legal advice and to further strive for
the best interests of the Group, the Group lodged an application
for international arbitration (the “Arbitration”) with South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in June
2017 to determine the precise entitlement of the Group regarding
rent, income and profit generated from the Existing Land, pursuant
to a shareholders’ agreement entered into between the Group and the
Chinese joint venture partner on 20 December 1996 in relation to Zhen
Wah. In accordance with the arbitral proceedings, the Arbitration after
the expiration of the conciliation at the end of July 2018 has been
resumed with the arbitral panel having been formed in May 2019. The
hearing of the arbitral panel was held in July 2019 pending for arbitral
results. Irrespective of the result of the Arbitration, Zhen Wah will be
wound up in the process of the Liquidation in due course.

In the year, the Group shared of loss of Zhen Wah in the sum of
HK$10,140,000 (2018: HK$9,949,000) and incurred professional
fees in the amount of HK$12,819,000 (2018: HK$11,727,000) for its
liquidation and the Arbitration.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

9



10

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid. During
the year under review, the financing and treasury policies of the Group
were managed and controlled at the corporate level and in a prudent
manner, to utilize the group funding and to manage the financial risks
effectively. At 30 June 2019, the equity attributable to its owners
amounted to HK$2,095,656,000 (2018: HK$2,148,998,000) with net
asset value per share of HK$9.18 (2018: HK$9.54). Total unsecured
and secured bank borrowings of the Group amounted to about
HK$107,759,000 (2018: HK$135,520,000), which were in Hong Kong
dollars and repayable within one year on floating rate basis. As at 30
June 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group was 5% (2018: 6%) based
on the total debt of the Group to its equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The exposure to foreign currency fluctuations of RMB
against HKD affected the Group in the year resulting in net exchange
loss of HK$5,841,000 (2018: net exchange gain of HK$4,006,000)
and no financial instruments were used for hedging purpose in the
year. Meanwhile, the fluctuation of RMB may affect the financial
performance and position of the Group, which the Group will continue
to assess and minimize the adverse impact.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

In the year under review, there was sufficient cashflow as generated by
rental revenue of investment properties in Shanghai and Beijing. As at
30 June 2019, the Group’s fixed bank deposits and bank balance and
cash stood at HK$260,514,000 (2018: HK$257,870,000), denominated
primarily in renminbi yuans. With sufficient cashflow, the Group
maintained an un-utilised credit facilities of HK$16,000,000 (2018:
HK$16,000,000) as working capital at floating interest rate as at 30
June 2019. The Group net current assets amounted to HK$77,356,000
(2018: HK$193,799,000) with current ratio of 1.32 (2018: 2.30) as at
30 June 2019.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2019, the Group pledged its properties with a total
carrying value of HK$918,536,000 (2018: HK$950,065,000), an
assignment of rental and sale proceeds from such properties and a
charge over shares in respect of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group to financial institutions as security against general banking
facilities granted to the Group, and also pledged certain of its bank
deposits in the sum of HK$13,065,000 (2018: HK$30,521,000) to
banks to secure banking facilities and home loans granted to the
home buyers of property project of the Group. As at the end of
the reporting period, the Group has given guarantees in respect of
settlement of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a
property project in Beijing. As at 30 June 2019, the Group had given
guarantees in respect of such home loans of HK$1,032,000 (2018:
HK$1,859,000). The Directors of the Company consider that the fair
values of these financial guarantee contracts at their initial recognition
and at the end of the reporting period are insignificant on the basis of
the low loan ratio.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
FTEHMES (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are a number of factors affecting the results and business
operations of the Group. The most significant risk is the uncertainty in
the economic environment, both globally and in the mainland China
especially the uncertainty over the possibility of trade wars between
the United States and other countries. Moreover, the governmental
policy and regulations relating to the business and operations of
the Group in the mainland China and their prospective changes
especially fiscal and monetary policies will also affect the results and
performance of the Group. In addition, the poor performance and
default risk of tenants under unstable economic outlook may also have
an impact on the revenue and results of the Group.

PROSPECTS

The continuing tension of trade war between the mainland China and
the United States will weigh on the ensuing uncertainties in economic
outlook in the mainland China. Nevertheless, it is believed that the
mainland Chinese government will continue to implement increasing
official effort and supportive measures to bolster market expectation
and minimize the impact of an economic slowdown, including
adopting accommodative monetary policy and fiscal stimulus plans
to underpin economic growth and domestic consumption, as well as
to moderate the fluctuation of the RMB exchange rate and to promote
local investments in infrastructure and deployment of technology,
which will have a positive effect to stimulate leasing demand of office
and retail sectors.

In Beijing, slowing economic growth will suppress consumers’
spending power and momentum, hindering retailers’ leasing demands.
However, it is expected that the amalgamation of online and offline
will continue to drive evolution of retail demand on the mainland
China. With the recent several official policies to stimulate the
development of retail market, it is expected that the resilient middle-
class consumption will sustain mid-range and mass-market retailers.
With more awareness and demand of consumers for consumption
experiences, quality and convenience, the Group will endeavor to
proactively adjust and transform leasing and seasonal marketing
strategies, emphasizing diversified brand portfolio and outlet stores
to fit customers’ demands with renovation to attract the attention
of more consumers, strengthen shopping experience and stimulate
consumption, so as to maintain high occupancy rate and constant
revenue to the Group.

In Shanghai, it is expected that take-up of office market will remain
in fierce competition with net-absorption of office space continuing
its decline, resulting from a glut of office projects, slowing economic
headwinds in financial and technology sections as well as influx of
intermediary service providers such as co-working spaces, all of which
will dent office demand and subdue rental rate. In Pudong, as financial
hub, there will be leasing demand from local insurance, financial and
professional enterprises. But the rental growth will inevitably face
downward pressure with decline in occupancy rate amid economic
slowdown, considerable volumes of new office supply and unabsorbed
vacancies. To maintain high occupancy rate and steady recurring
revenue, the Group will continue to adopt competitive and effective
rental strategies to induce new tenants and retain the existing tenants.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

In Shenzhen, the recent official announcement of construction
of Shenzhen Demonstration Pilot Zone is conducive move to the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area for efficient and
convenient flow of talent, capital, technology and information, which
will help build Shenzhen into one of the leading cities in the world in
terms of economic strength and quality development. Pursuant to the
recent premium city planning and development in the area of Tung
Kok Tau, Shekou, it will greatly enhance the development value of
the land located therein to be swapped. The Group will continue to
act proactively for safeguarding the best interests of the Company in
relation to Zhen Wah and its assets. It will continue to adopt the best
available measures and take expedient action with a view to protecting
the Company’s interests in the context of the compulsory liquidation
of Zhen Wah.

And based on the PRC legal advice received by the Group, assets
of Zhen Wah will eventually be sold by way of public auction or
disposed of by other applicable means subject to endorsement of the
PRC court upon receipt of proposal of the Liquidation Committee
in accordance with the PRC laws, and any surplus (after settlement
of all relevant liabilities including taxation) will be distributed to the
joint venture partners in accordance with their equity contributions.
However, the issues involved in liquidation of Zhen Wah are complex
and sophisticated, involving not only the PRC court but also various
governmental authorities. There is no assurance that the liquidation
may not be subject to significant delay, oppositions, obstructions and
further dispute or litigation with respect to the matters of Zhen Wah
and/or its assets.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank the shareholders, bankers, customers,
suppliers of the Group and others who have extended their invaluable
support to the Group and all staff of the Group for their considerable
contributions to the Group in the year.

Dr. TAN Lucio C.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 September 2019
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The brief biographical details of each director (the “Directors”) of the
board (the “Board”) of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”’) and updated
information (if any) on Directors pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) and

13.51C of the Listing Rules as at the reporting date are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. TAN Lucio C., aged 85, is the Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company as appointed with effect from
4 March 2019. He is also the chairman and director of a subsidiary
of the Company (Beijing Longfast Property Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast”)) in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). He has years of senior managerial experience specialising
in real estate, banking, airline, hotel, liquor and tobacco industries.
Dr. TAN holds a number of senior positions in various organisations
and holds directorships in various listed companies. Dr. TAN is
and has been the chairman and a director of LT Group, Inc. (“LT
Group”), PAL Holdings, Inc. (“PAL”) and MacroAsia Corporation
(“MacroAsia”), and a director of Philippines National Bank (“PNB”),
all securities of which are listed on The Philippine Stock Exchange,
Inc. (“PSE”). In addition, he has been recognised for, and awarded as
the “Beijing City Overseas Chinese Special Honorary Award” (Beijing
Municipality) and the “Overseas Chinese Entrepreneur with the
Greatest Sense of Social Responsibility in the Asia-Pacific Region”
(Overseas Chinese Affairs Office of the State Council, China). As for
involvement in social organisations, Dr. TAN is the overseas advisor
of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese (China), the
emeritus chairman of the Federation of Filipino-Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and Industry, Inc. (“FFCCCI”) in the Philippines, and is
the founder and vice chairman of the Foundation for Upgrading the
Standard of Education, Inc. Dr. TAN holds a bachelor of science in
chemical engineering from Far Eastern University in the Philippines,
and several doctorate degrees honoris causa from various universities.
He is related to other Executive Directors being the spouse of Mrs.
TAN Carmen K.; the father of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN
Michael Gonzales and Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao; and the father-in-law
of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 61, is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company as re-designated with effect from 10 May 2019 and
has been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since
2007. He is also the director of all subsidiaries of the Company
(except those subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC) and a director of
a joint venture in the PRC, Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises
Ltd., in which the Company holds 49% of equity interests, under
compulsory liquidation as commenced in July 2016. He has years of
senior managerial experience specialising in the field of real estate,
accounting and finance in Hong Kong and the mainland China. Prior
to joining the Group in 1993, he worked at a major accounting firm
and held various senior accounting positions in property companies in
Hong Kong. He holds a master degree in business administration.

Further details of the above-mentioned liquidation are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 5 August 2019 and 11
September 2019; and notes 15 and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K., aged 78, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed with effect from 4 March 2019. She is in
charge of business development, investment and management of the
Group. She has years of senior managerial experience specialising in
real estate, banking, airline, hotel, liquor and tobacco industries. Mrs.
TAN holds directorships in several listed companies. She is and has
been a director of LT Group, MacroAsia, PAL and PNB, all securities
of which are listed on PSE. She is related to other Executive Directors
being the spouse of Dr. TAN Lucio C.; the mother of Mr. TAN Lucio
Jr. Khao and Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao; and the mother-in-law of Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, aged 53, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 1997. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a director of Beijing Longfast in the PRC. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking, hotel,
brewery, airline, milling and security. He holds directorships in other
listed companies, LT Group, PNB, PAL, MacroAsia and Victorias
Milling Company, Inc. (“Victorias™), securities of which are all listed
on PSE. And he is the president and director of Tanduay Distillers,
Inc. as well as the president and chief executive officer of Eton
Properties Philippines Inc. (“Eton Philippines”), in the Philippines.
He has held directors/senior executive positions in various companies
in Hong Kong, the mainland China and the Philippines. He holds
a master degree in executive master of business and administration
program as well as a bachelor degree in civil engineering. He is related
to other Executive Directors being the son of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and
Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; the half-brother of Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales;
the brother of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and the brother-in-law of Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.
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PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, aged 53, is an Executive Director
of the Company as appointed in 2013. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a director of Beijing Longfast in the PRC. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking, hotel,
airline, milling and brewery. He holds a number of senior positions in
various organisations and is the president and director of LT Group,
and is directors of various companies in Hong Kong, the mainland
China and the Philippines as well as other listed companies, PAL,
MacroAsia, Victorias and PNB. He previously was the chairman of
The Association of Young Filipino-Chinese Entrepreneurs and is
currently the vice president of FFCCCI. He holds a bachelor degree of
applied science in civil engineering. He is related to other Executive
Directors being the son of Dr. TAN Lucio C.; the half-brother of Mr.
TAN Lucio Jr. Khao and Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao; and the brother-
in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 60, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2006. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a director of Beijing Longfast in the PRC. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate and manufacturing.
He currently holds a senior executive position in Eton Properties
(Holdings) Limited, and serves as directors in several companies
engaging businesses of real estate, manufacturing and logistics in the
mainland China, Hong Kong and the Philippines. He holds a bachelor
degree in economics. He is related to several Executive Directors
being the son-in-law of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.;
and the brother-in-law of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael
Gonzales, Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.

Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan, aged 63, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2016. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He has years
of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking,
airline, mining, insurance and general management. Mr. CHUA holds
a number of senior positions in various organisations and directorship
in other listed company, MacroAsia. He is a member of the
Management Association of the Philippines. Besides, he previously
was directors of other listed companies, LT Group, PNB and PAL. He
holds a bachelor of arts in economics, a bachelor of science in business
management and masters of business administration and international
finance. He is related to several Executive Directors being the son-in-
law of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; and the brother-
in-law of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Ms.
TAN Vivienne Khao and Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, aged 51, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed with effect from 4 March 2019. She is in
charge of business development, investment and management of the
Group. She has years of senior managerial experience specialising
in real estate, banking, airline and education. Ms. TAN is and has
been a director of LT Group and PNB, securities of which are listed
on PSE. She is the director of Eton Philippines. She sits on the
board of the University of the East and the University of the East
Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Medical Center. She has been awarded
the “Ten Outstanding Young Men Award” for education/business
entrepreneurship in the Philippines. Ms. TAN graduated from the
University of San Francisco with a double degree in mathematics and
computer science. She is related to other Executive Directors being
the daughter of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K., the
sister of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao; the half-sister of Mr. TAN Michael
Gonzales and the sister-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr.
CHUA Joseph Tan.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 68, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 1994. He is also
the chairman of both audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Board, as well as a member of nomination committee of the Board.
He is a veteran in the jewellery business in which he has years of
senior managerial experience. He is managing a number of companies
engaged in diamond trading, jewellery manufacturing, wholesaling
and exports activities in Hong Kong and South East Asian countries.
Currently, he also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (“Allied”).

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 69, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 2010. He is also
members of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board. He has years of senior managerial experience
specialising in banking business. Currently, he also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Allied. He holds doctor of
philosophy in corporate management, a master degree in business
administration and a bachelor degree in laws. He is an associate of
the Institute of Financial Accountants in United Kingdom, registered
financial planner of the Society of Registered Financial Planner in
Hong Kong and in the mainland China as well as certified risk planner
of The Institute of Crisis and Risk Management in Hong Kong.
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PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ERASEHN (#/)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. GO Patrick Lim, aged 61, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed in 2013. He is also a member of
audit committee of the Board and has been nominated as the chairman
and member of nomination committee of the Board with effect from
11 September 2019. He is the chief executive officer of Paramount
Life & General Insurance Corporation and also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Allied. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in corporate finance and private/
public equity having worked for Credit Suisse First Boston, Bank
of America Asia Limited and Bankers Trust Company. He is also a
member of Singapore Institute of Directors. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in economics and a master degree in business administration.
He was formerly a director of Del Monte Pacific Limited, which is
listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.

Mr. NGU Angel, aged 71, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed with effect from 10 May
2019. He has years of senior managerial experience specialising in
the business of aluminum products. Mr. NGU holds directorships in
various companies and holds a number of senior positions in various
organisations. He is the chairman and president of Angus Aluminum,
Inc. and Roosevelt Aluminum Products Co. Inc. He is also honorary
president of FFCCCI in the Philippines and Filipino-Chinese Quezon
City Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he has been awarded as 2016
Outstanding Manilan for Community Service, City of Manila. He
holds a bachelor degree in commerce from University of the East in
the Philippines.

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony, aged 64, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed with effect from 11
September 2019. He is also a member of remuneration committee of
the Board. He has years of senior managerial experience specialising
in the business of banking. Mr. MA has held senior position in treasury
and global markets in Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited and
Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong Branch. He has been a member of
the Treasury Markets Association and an Alternate Chief Executive of
Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong Branch. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts from York University in Canada.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) and management
of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) strive to establish
and uphold good practices and procedures on corporate governance.
The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis
an effective Board, prudent risk management and internal control
systems, transparency and accountability to its stakeholders including

shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and the public.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, being the financial year under
review, the Board and the management of the Company have been
continually reviewing and enhancing the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to local and international
best practices from time to time. The Board believes that its continued
efforts in enhancing the Company’s corporate governance practices
have contributed to sustain the business growth of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

With an aim to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company has
applied the principles and adhered to the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as amended from time to time, save for deviation of certain code
provisions of the CG Code as disclosed below. Also, the Company has
met some of the recommended best practices, where appropriate, in
the CG Code.

The Company has also established an internal corporate governance
code (compliance guide) (the “Internal CG Code”), the contents
of which are in line with the CG Code as revised from time to time
according to the relevant amendments to the Listing Rules. The
Internal CG Code aims to facilitate compliance with the CG Code
and to give guidance to Directors and the senior management of the
Company in this respect. The Board will continue to monitor and
review the corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code and to enhance its

practices and procedures.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed to
the Company that he has complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises eight executive Directors (the
“Executive Directors”) and five Independent non-executive Directors
(the “Independent Non-executive Directors”). The members of the
Board during the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to 27 September
2019 are as follows:

Current Directors:
Dr. TAN Lucio C.

(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and

Executive Director)

Mrs. TAN Carmen K.
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. NGU Angel
(appointed on 10 May 2019)
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony
(appointed on 11 September 2019)
Resigned/Retired Directors:
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(resigned on 11 September 2019)
Dr. SY Robin Chua
(resigned on 23 April 2019)
Mr. TAN Harry Chua
(retired on 6 December 2018)
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
(retired on 6 December 2018)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and

Executive Director)

Currently, the Company has five Independent Non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board and more than one of
them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives and
development plans, monitoring the performance of the business and
senior management, and ensuring sound corporate governance of the
Group. It also monitors the financial performance, the internal controls
system and risk management of the Group’s business operations.
Executive Directors are responsible for running and managing the
operations of the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the
Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Responsibilities and Accountabilities (Continued)

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management with departmental heads responsible for different
aspects of the business and functions of the Group. The Independent
Non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing independent
judgement on the development, performance, internal controls,
corporate governance and risk management of the Group through
their contributions in the meetings of the Board and committees of the
Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company held a total of eight
Board meetings including regular board meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals, two meetings of committees of the Board, and an
annual general meeting. Details of Directors’ attendance record of
such regular Board meetings, committee meeting and general meeting
during the year are as follows:

Number of Meetings Attended/
Eligible to Attend

Annual
Audit General
Name of Directors Board Committee Meeting
Dr. TAN Lucio C. 3/3 N/A N/A
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 8/8 N/A 1/1
Mrs. TAN Carmen K. 3/3 N/A N/A
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 8/8 N/A 0/1
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 8/8 N/A 0/1
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 8/8 N/A 0/1
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 8/8 N/A 1/1
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 3/3 N/A N/A
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 8/8 2/2 11
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 8/8 2/2 11
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 8/8 2/2 1/1
Mr. NGU Angel 1/1 N/A N/A
(appointed on 10 May 2019)
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao 8/8 N/A 1/1
(resigned on 11 September 2019)
Dr. SY Robin Chua 7/7 2/2 0/1
(resigned on 23 April 2019)
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 4/4 N/A 1/1
(retired on 6 December 2018)
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 4/4 N/A 0/1

(retired on 6 December 2018)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Training and Development

For training and continuing professional development of Directors,
the Company provides relevant information and publications to all
Directors on a regular basis to keep them abreast of the latest changes
and development in the industry, legal, statutory and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business, and to refresh
their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company to ensure that the Directors’ contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors have also from
time to time been provided by the Company of in-house training
and updates in the areas of regulatory, corporate governance, risk
management, internal control practices and policy and sound industry
practices.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums or
training courses on relevant topics for their continuous professional
development. There are arrangements in place for Directors to obtain
continuing professional development at the Company’s expense
whenever necessary.

The newly appointed Directors, Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN
Carmen K., Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Mr. NGU Angel and Mr.
MA Chiu Tak, Anthony, received induction on the first occasion
of their appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training and continuous professional development, all current,
resigned and retired Directors as stated above participated in the
training activities described above including, amongst others, in-house
briefing, luncheon talks, training courses and/or seminars, as well
as self-study and coaching and mentoring provided to internal staff
during the year ended 30 June 2019. Each Director has provided a
record of training they received during the year to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEO”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure
a balance of power and authority. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for driving effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice, and overseeing
the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning. The CEO is
mainly responsible for implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved by the Board and managing the business and affairs of the
Company.

As announced on 6 December 2018, Mr. TAN Harry Chua after
retirement as executive Director has ceased to be the Chairman
with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting on 6
December 2018 (the “2018 AGM”). Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank after
retirement as executive Director has ceased to be the CEO with effect
from the conclusion of the 2018 AGM.

Meanwhile, as announced on 4 March 2019, Dr. TAN Lucio C. has
been appointed as the Chairman and Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan has
been appointed as the acting CEO both with effect from that date.
Thereafter, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan has been re-designated as the
CEO with effect from 10 May 2019 as announced on that date. As a
result, the Company has not appointed a Chairman and CEO during
the period from conclusion of 2018 AGM on 6 December 2018 to
3 March 2019 and thereby the provisions of A.2.1 to A.2.9 of the Code
could not be fully complied with by the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(the Company has currently no other non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term of two years subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The
Bye-laws stipulate that every Director will be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at annual general meeting of
the Company, and being eligible for re-election.

Meanwhile, all Independent Non-executive Directors have to confirm
their respective independence annually pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules for their continuous appointment after reviewed and
assessed by Nomination Committee. And those serving for more
than 9 years, their further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolutions to be approved by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence and the Board considers that each Independent
Non-executive Director meets the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is independent.
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BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee for overseeing specific aspects of the affairs of the Group.
Each committee is established with defined terms of reference, which
are posted on the website of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 2005 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements set out in paragraph B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The members and change in composition of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to 27
September 2019 are as follows:

Current members:
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony
(appointed on 11 September 2019)
Ceased members:
Dr. SY Robin Chua
(ceased on 23 April 2019)
Mr. TAN Harry Chua
(ceased on 6 December 2018)
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
(ceased on 6 December 2018)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director)

*  Chairman of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing,
evaluating and/or recommending to the Board the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing the policy of such remuneration; and the specific
remuneration packages (if any) of individual Executive Directors and
senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to 27 September 2019, the
members of the Remuneration Committee performed the following
works pursuant to resolutions in writing signed by all members in
accordance with its terms of reference:

1. reviewed the emolument policy of the Directors of the Company
and remuneration policy of the employees of the Group and the
retirement benefit schemes of the Group;

2. make recommendation of emolument policies of the Directors
of the Company and employees of the Group;

3. recommended to the Board the emolument of five newly
appointed Directors, Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K.,
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Mr. NGU Angel and Mr. MA Chiu
Tak, Anthony respectively; and

4. reviewed the share option schemes of the Company as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees.

As such, no meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 30 June 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee of the Board
(the “Nomination Committee”) since 2012 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements as set out in paragraph A.5.2 of the CG
Code. The members and change in composition of the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to 27
September 2019 are as follows:

Current members:
Mr. GO Patrick Lim*
(appointed as chairman and member on
11 September 2019)
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Ceased members:
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(appointed as chairman and member on
4 March 2019, and ceased on
11 September 2019)
Dr. SY Robin Chua
(ceased on 23 April 2019)
Mr. TAN Harry Chua
(ceased as chairman and member on
6 December 2018)
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
(ceased on 6 December 2018)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive

Director)

*  Chairman of Nomination Committee

As announced on 6 December 2018, Mr. TAN Harry Chua after
retirement as executive Director has ceased to be the chairman of
Nomination Committee with effect from the conclusion of the 2018
AGM. Thereafter, Mr. TAN Kenway Hao was appointed as a member
and the chairman of Nomination Committee on 4 March 2019. As
a result, the Company has not appointed a chairman of Nomination
Committee during the period from conclusion of 2018 AGM on 6
December 2018 to 3 March 2019 and the provision of A.5.1 of the
Code could not be fully complied with by the Company.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the composition, structure, size and diversity of the Board; formulating
and monitoring the policy for nomination of Directors; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Criteria adopted by the Nomination
Committee in considering whether the relevant personnel are suitable
as Directors include their qualifications, experience, expertise, skills
and knowledge, ethnical, age, cultural background and so on in view
of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the policy of diversity of the
Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) as adopted by the Board, which
summary is set forth below.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity

The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to increase diversity at
the level of the Board; to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
quality of its performance; and to support the attainment of strategic
objectives/plan and sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to regional, industry
and professional experience, skills and knowledge, relevant length
of services, gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Board
Diversity Policy and recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate)
to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to 27 September 2019,
the members of the Nomination Committee performed the following
works pursuant to resolutions in writing signed by all members in

accordance with its terms of reference:

1. assessed and recommended to the Board the appointment of Dr.
TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao
as Executive Directors of the Company and Mr. NGU Angel
and Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony as Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

2. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the
Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to

the requirements of the business of the Group;

3. reviewed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and
4. reviewed retirement and re-election of Directors.

As such, no meetings were held by the Nomination Committee during
the year ended 30 June 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity (Continued)

For diversity of the members of the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills and knowledge, age, ethnicity, relevant years of experience and
expertise and relationships (including business, financial and family,
if any) among them and between the chairman and chief executive
officer (if any), please refer to the “Profile of Management” and
the section on “Directors interests in competing business” in the
“Directors’ Report” on pages 13 to 17 and pages 32 to 43 respectively
of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) since 1999 with terms of reference, which meet the
requirements as set out in paragraph C.3.3 of the CG Code. During the
year, the Board has delegated the functions of corporate governance
to the Audit Committee with additional terms of reference as set out
in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The members and change in
composition of the audit committee during the year ended 30 June
2019 and up to 27 September 2019 are as follows:

Current members:
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Ceased members:
Dr. SY Robin Chua
(ceased on 23 April 2019)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

Relationship with the auditors

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor;

2. toreview and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards;
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

Review of the financial information, financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

3. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the annual report, half-year report and accounts
of the Company and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

4. to oversee the financial reporting system and review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group;

Relationship with employees

5. toreview arrangement for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about possible improprieties of financial reporting,
internal control or other matters; and

Corporate governance function

6.  toreview and monitor corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to 27 September 2019,
three meetings were held and resolutions in writing were passed by
the Audit Committee for, amongst others, the following in accordance
with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee:

1. recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor; and
reviewed the financial reporting system and procedures of risks
and internal controls of the Group; and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the years ended 30 June
2018 and 30 June 2019;

2. approved the engagement of the external auditor for reviewing
interim results; and reviewed the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 December 2018; and

3. reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on corporate
governance under D.3.1 of the CG Code, and compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as stated in corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018
and as disclosed in the interim report for the six months ended
31 December 2018.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2019, audit and non-audit services were
provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the
Company (the “Auditor”). The analysis of services and remuneration
paid and payable in connection therewith are as follows:

Services provided Amount
HK$°000

Audit services
+ Statutory audit fee for the year ended

30 June 2019 1,330
* Defined Contribution Scheme for the year ended

30 June 2019 10
Non-audit services
* Review fee of interim results for

the six months ended 31 December 2018 and

announcement of final results for the year

ended 30 June 2019 210
* Advisory fee for environment, social and

governance reporting for the year ended

30 June 2019 55

The Audit Committee is of the view that the Auditor’s independence
and objectivity will not be affected by the provision of the above-
mentioned limited scope of the non-audit services to the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, re-appointment, resignation or dismissal
of its external auditor during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Auditor’s statement of reporting responsibilities and report
on material uncertainty (if any) of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 44 to 48 to this annual
report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in which it
operates. To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for establishing
and overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has included its responsibility for an effective system of
risk management and internal control. The main features of these
systems, which continue to operate, were described in this “Corporate
Governance Report”.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board and the Audit Committee
have delegated the management to conduct and complete a review in
respect of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of business and operations of the Group. Such
review conducts annually and covers all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions.

The Group has also engaged internal audit function and no material
control failure or significant areas of concern or fraud which might
affect the interests of the Shareholders were identified during the
reviews.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure in the process of attaining business objectives. The review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year has been concluded and based on the results of the annual
review, the Board considers them effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
is responsible for ensuring that Board’s policy and procedures
are followed and Board’s activities are effectively and efficiently
conducted. In addition, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on governance matters and facilitates induction and professional
development of Directors.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board’s approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. All members
of the Board have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary, Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly is an
employee of the Group and has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 30 June 2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company regards communication with its Shareholders and
investors as an important means to enhance the transparency of
the Group and regularly collects views and feedback from them,
to safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and investors. To this
end, the Company communicates with its Shareholders through
various channels, including annual general meetings, special general
meetings, annual reports, notices of general meetings, circulars sent
to Shareholders, announcements, press releases and other corporate
communications available on the website of the Company.

At the 2018 AGM, management and external auditor of the Company
together with the chairman of the Board; and the chairmen and
several members of the Board’s committees attended the AGM to
answer relevant questions raised by and understand the views of the
Shareholders thereat. In respect of the year ended 30 June 2019, an
annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 29 November
2019, at which the Company will arrange for the Chairmen of the
Board and committees of the Board to attend and answer questions
and proposals raised by the Shareholders thereat.

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or proposals
to Board of the Company through the following means:

Telephone:  (852) 2881 5221
Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Post: 17th Floor
Eton Tower
8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Website: https://www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com

By virtue of section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda) (as
amended), the procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting and to put forward proposals at general meetings are:

1. The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of member(s) of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

2. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

3. If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
6 December 2018 effective on 1 January 2019 that aims to provide
Shareholders with a target of annual dividend(s) in consideration of,
among others, the net profit attributable to the Shareholders in any
financial year, whether as interim and/or final dividends. The Dividend

Policy is subject to review from time to time.

According to the Bye-Laws, the Company in general meeting may
declare dividend(s) but no dividend(s) shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. And the Board may from time to time
declare such interim dividends to the Shareholders as the Board thinks
appropriate. And it is the policy of the Board, in recommending
and declaring dividends, to allow Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits, and to maintain adequate cash reserves for
business operations, development and growth of the Group.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into account
the following of the Group as a whole, inter alia, the actual and
expected financial performance of the Group; retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Company and each of the members of the
Group; the level of the debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the
relevant financial covenants of the Group; any restrictions on payment
of dividends that may be imposed by the lenders of the Group; the
expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans of
the Group; general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an impact
on the business or financial performance and position of the Group;
and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

In addition, in determining whether dividends are to be declared
and paid, the Board shall consider its operational results, cash flow
situation, financial conditions, Shareholders’ interests, general
business strategies and objectives, capital expenditure requirements,
payment by the Company’s subsidiaries of cash dividends to the

Company, and Bye-Laws and the applicable laws and regulations.
INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2019, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s constitutional document, namely, the memorandum
of association and Bye-laws which are posted on the website of the

Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in
presenting their annual report and

the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are property investment and development.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year, the Group’s revenue was derived primarily from rental
business activities conducted in the mainland China. An analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year by operating segment is set out
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

A fair review of the Group’s business, including an analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators,
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, the important
events (if any) affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of
the financial year and the likely future developments, is set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report. Details of capital risk
management and financial risk management are set out in notes 30 and
31 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to supporting sustainability of the
environment and endeavours to comply with applicable laws,
rules and regulations regarding environmental protection and to
adopt measurement to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction. Further details will be disclosed in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2019” of the
Company which should be published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company respectively no later than three months after the publication
of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the risk of non-compliance with such
requirements. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. Further discussions on
the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2019”.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship
in a sustainable manner with its stakeholders including its sharcholders
and investors, employees, customers, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and community as well as enhancing collaboration with our business
partners. Details are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2019”.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 143 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 49.

On 9 January 2019, a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per share
was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

An interim dividend of 3 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$6,850,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company during
the year. On 27 September 2019, the Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per share amounting
to HK$9,293,000 payable to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 20
December 2019 which, in aggregate, will give a total of dividends for
the year ended 30 June 2019 of 7 Hong Kong cents per share.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The increase in the fair value of the investment properties which has
been recognised in profit or loss amounted to HK$3,560,000.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in notes
13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified by the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and liabilities incurred by him or her in the
course of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant to its bye-
laws of the Company. Such provisions were in force during the year
and remained in force as at the date of this report. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal action against Directors and senior
management of the Company arising out of corporate activities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained earnings of HK$105,695,000 as at 30 June 2019.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:
Executive Directors:

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Chairman
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. TAN Carmen K.
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao
(appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. TAN Harry Chua
(retired on 6 December 2018)
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
(retired on 6 December 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. NGU Angel
(appointed on 10 May 2019)
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony
(appointed on 11 September 2019)
Dr. SY Robin Chua
(resigned on 23 April 2019)
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(resigned on 11 September 2019)

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John and Mr.
GO Patrick Lim will retire by rotation, and Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs.
TAN Carmen K., Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Mr. NGU Angel and
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, and all being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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Name of Director

Bk A (7 —) Dr. TAN Lucio C. (note i)
(RZZ—NF=AMHA  (appointed on 4 March 2019)
EZAT)

HOBEE Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

TAN Carmen K. &£ (47 —) Mrs. TAN Carmen K. (note ii)
(RZZ—JFE=AMHA  (appointed on 4 March 2019)
EZAT)

Wi 28 e Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
O S AE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
FERIE ek Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
R Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

GO Patrick Lim 5 /& Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mat -

— - RGOS XVES > BRI s DL A A
AR 56 2 W7 N B 0 75 489,321,279 B 1% = B 1+
F5472,190,000 FR A BR AR 3 149 A7 A ME 45 (B 45 r 8 432
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates in the shares of the Company (‘“Shares”), shares of any of
its associated corporations and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

HHCHT 4% 2 I 1
WHBRYH () A B B B 2 (R AY)
Number of issued Interests in underlying Shares
ordinary shares held pursuant to share options
(long position) (long position)
LA
HRAY  CRiRA
WARE  JERERE O WAER KRR (7)) MYiRaY
Total
interests
as approximate
Total percentage of
Personal Other Personal Family interests  issued share
interests interests interests interests (long position) capital
(Witr)  (Wit=) (Witm)
(note v) (note i) (note iv)
= 89,321,279 2,190,000 2,190,000 93,701,279 41.04%
1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000 0.44%
= 89,321,279 2,190,000 2,190,000 93,701,279 41.04%
= = 1,500,000 = 1,500,000 0.66%
82,000 = 1,500,000 = 1,582,000 0.69%
= = 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 0.44%
582,000 = = = 582,000 025%
= = 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 0.44%
Notes:

Dr. TAN Lucio C. was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares as founder
of a private discretionary trust. Dr. TAN was interested in 2,190,000 underlying
Shares as derivative interests, representing share options granted in his favour.
Dr. TAN was also deemed to be interested in 2,190,000 underlying Shares as
derivative interests, representing share options granted in favour of his spouse,
Mrs. TAN Carmen K., as family interests under Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

ii. Mrs. TAN Carmen K. was interested in 2,190,000 underlying shares as derivative
interests, representing share options granted in her favour. Mrs. TAN was also
deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares which her spouse, Dr. TAN Lucio
C., was interested in as founder of a private discretionary trust, and 2,190,000
underlying Shares as derivative interests, representing share options granted in
favour of Dr. TAN Lucio C. as family interests under Part XV of the SFO.

iii. The Directors’ interests in the underlying Shares are through share options granted
by the Company on 25 October 2011 under the 2001 share option scheme and 10
November 2015 under the 2011 share option scheme respectively, details of which
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

iv. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 228,323,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2019.

v. The references to the 89,321,279 Shares in which Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs.

TAN Carmen K. were interested in or taken to be interested in relate to the same
block of Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the Directors,
the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors, the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates had been granted or exercised any rights to subscribe for
any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) during the
year ended 30 June 2019.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

37



DIRECTORS’ REPORT /(Continued)
SEREE @)

wd JBe B sl SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

RN T GBREHEFT B W GRS R 45 & MBS BE Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in
TEMf 58 24TH A - note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

THI BB AAEERNALN TR AE  The following table discloses the movements of share options of the
H) Company during the year:

AR H

Number of share options

R ORSF-NE OREER  OREER REER REZ-0E

it LA-R EEM fi o4 ARZtHH
Reclassified ~ Exercised Lapsed
Exercise price At during during during At
Grantees Dateofgrant  perShare  1July2018 the year* the year the year 30 June 2019
BE
HKS
0143 2001 Scheme
#H Directors
TAN Lo Cfi-+ Dr. TAN Lucio C. ZE-—~EFAZTER 25 0ctober 2011 113 - 2,190,000 - < 2090000
(R-Z—E= RN AERE) (appointed on 4 March 2019)
TAN CamenK 1+ Mrs. TAN Carmen K. “E-=EFAZTER 25 0ctober2011 113 - 2190000 - - 2190000
(REF-NE=NLHEZ) (appointed on 4 March 2019)
W25 Mr. TAN Lucio Jr Khao ZE-~FHAZTER 25 0ctober 2011 113 1500000 - - - 1300000
HEEGE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy “E-=EFAZTER 25 0ctober2011 113 1,500,000 - - - 1500000
fHAE Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kemneth  ~F——F+F =+ H 25 October 2011 L3 1000000 - = — 1,000,000
Bk Mr. TAN Harry Chua ZE-~FFAZTER 25 0ctober 2011 113 1500000 = (1,500,000) = -
(RZF—NEFZAA BB (retired on 6 December 2018)
Bk At Dr. CHAN WingKit, Frank ==+ Z+EH 25 0ctober2011 113 1650000 - (1650.000) = =
(RZZ—MEFZHAAREMR)  (retired on 6 December 2018)
SY Robin Chua £ Dr. SY Robin Chua ZE—ETAZTER 25 0ctober 2011 L3 1000000 - ~(1,000,000) -
(REF—=ERAZT=HEME)  (resigned on 23 April 2019)
i) Others
BRI Mr. CHUA Domingo “E-—ERAZER 25 0ctober2011 L3 1800000 = - ~ 1800000
TAN Lucio C. 1 Dr. TAN Lucio C. ZE-~FHAZTER 25 0ctober 2011 LI3 2190000 (2,190,000) - - -
TAN CamenK. 1+ Ms. TAN Carmen K. “E-—EFAZFER 25 October 2011 LIS 2090000 (2,190,000) - - -
14,330,000 ~ (31500000 (1,000,000) 10,180,000
0114 2011 Scheme
# Director
GO Patick Lim £ % Mr. GO Patrck Lim SRREF-RTA 10 November 2015 305 1000000 - - - 1000000

* A F—JUE=H M B AN B S R * Reclassified upon individuals becoming directors on 4 March 2019.

Bior s e

— - RE2001FEER -F-—F A RHARN 1. The share options granted on 25 October 2011 under 2001 Scheme may be
MR IERE s it = F——4E+H -+ REE F exercised from 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 with no vesting period. The
—HAFETH AV AT 3R o B closing price of the Shares on 24 October 2011 (the date immediately before the
SR —— 4 S H (B E A — date of grant) was HK$1.12.

F) g e vl 18 2 5 I s 112 0T ©

T MRE01EF RN SRR -A T HEZBN 2 The share options granted on 10 November 2015 under 2011 Scheme may be

PR W E—HAE++—HTHE E R exercised from 10 November 2015 to 24 October 2019 with no vesting period. The
FAH AW B AT R o B closing price of the Shares on 9 November 2015 (the date immediately before the
—HAET—HIUH (BHEZEERZE—H) ik date of grant) was HK$3.05.

18 2 B B s ¥ 3.05 0 ©
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and under sections of “Directors’ interests and short
positions in Shares” and “Share Option Schemes”, at no time during
the year and as at 30 June 2019 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, at no time
during the year, subsisted such arrangement(s) as aforesaid and none
of the Directors of the Company, their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao,
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, Mr. CHUA
Joseph Tan, Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Mr. TAN Harry Chua (retired
on 6 December 2018) and Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (retired on
6 December 2018) held interests and/or directorship in companies
engaged in the businesses of property investment and development in
Hong Kong and/or mainland China.

As the Board of Directors is independent from the boards of the
said companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such
companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
material interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group to be
undertaken by a person was entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2019, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executive(s) of the Company, persons (other than the Directors or
the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

MR Y
FHOEM EREY CHERAR
BERAEH (Ff)  THARHY
Total interests
as approximate
Number of percentage
issued ordinary Total interests of issued
Capacity Shares held (long position) share capital
(W) (Hit=)
(note iv) (note i)
Camnation Investments Inc. ~ Carnation Investments Ine. ~ #h A2 {5762 Trustee of a private 89,321,279 89,321,279 39.12%
fRREA(Mfz—)  discretionary trust
(note i)
Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited  FM 8% (47 =) Other interests (note ii) 89,321,279 89,321,279 39.12%
Vik=a Notes:
— ~  Carnation Investments Inc. &% #% % 1 & M 4 A & i. Carnation Investments Inc. was taken to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares held

HE 5 %€ 2 15 %€ A\ & i £ 1 Dynamic Development
Corporation fIT #f 5 89,321,279 i {2 KE 45 » 1 H 4
HB L ¥EAT AR £ Carnation Investments Inc. T F4

. Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited # ¥ 2% 1 3 4 % [ff & 2>
7] Carnation Investments Inc. DA FA A\ 2 # {5 56 2 % 5
N B [H] e 35 47 89,321,279 I i 2 i 4

[1]

FHELAS SR 2 R A UL AR A T S - JUAR
ANHZ=ZH Z B AT 0 58 % (228,323,681 it
W) B -

P4~ 75 BH Camation Investments Inc. 2 Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited
Fe A HE £ SO R AF J R A RE R 189,321,279 % 1 14
By le] — L o

Br B SCRT#ER & 40 > R F — LN A =
A H > AR AL HOR 5 0 1 55 336 1 2 )
R A 2 B TR M A N (A )
R AT BN B RSN B A 6 K AR B
e 473 A £ HE 2 R o
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by Dynamic Development Corporation, the entire issued share capital of which
was held by Carnation Investments Inc. as trustee for a private discretionary trust.

ii. Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares
held indirectly by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Carnation Investments Inc., as
trustee of a private discretionary trust.

iii. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 228,323,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2019.

iv. The references to the 89,321,279 Shares in which Carnation Investments Inc. and

Zedra (Hong Kong) Limited were interested in or taken to be interested in relate to
the same block of Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, no other person (other
than the Directors and the chief executive(s) of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30 June 2019, the Group had about 50 employees (including
Directors) in Hong Kong and mainland China at prevailing market
remuneration with employee benefits such as medical insurance,
provident fund schemes and share option schemes.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
the respective merits, responsibilities and duties, performance,
qualifications and competence taking into account of comparable
market level, operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives of the Board of Directors and relevant legal requirements,
provisions, guidelines and recommendations of regularly bodies.

The emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to the operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives, individual performance and responsibility and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the share option schemes
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers were less than 30% of the total revenue of the
Group. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for 18% of the Group’s
purchases and the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate was 45% of the total direct costs of
the Group.

Save as those related party transactions are disclosed in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year did a
Director, an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2019.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Details of advances given to an affiliated company as at 30 June 2019
which exceeded 8% under the assets ratio as defined under rule 13.16
of the Listing Rules are as follows:

e Sy [ 3
AH=1H
k%
Amount of
advances at
30 June 2019
T T
HKS$°000
(R&EER)
(Unaudited)

AAE B A
| EoYipig A
Percentage of
equity held

by the Group

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd.
(“Zhen Wah”) (Note)

49% 215,712

Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter, Zhen

Wabh ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation. The advances
to Zhen Wah by the Group have been accounted for as amount due from a joint
venture, details of which are disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount of advances are unsecured and to be repayable after the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Pursuant to the continuing disclosure requirements under rule 13.22 of
the Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial position of the
above affiliated company, Zhen Wah, and the attributable interests of
the Group in Zhen Wah as at 30 June 2019 are disclosed as follows:

Heis
WL
Combined
statement of
financial position

ARLEH
AV 2
Group’s
attributable
interests
W WET T
HK$°000
T3 €773
(Unaudited)

Vo R
HK$°000

(RBAE)
(Unaudited)

FEWE &= Non-current assets 214,689 105,197
i B B Current assets 32,320 15,837
i A fE Current liabilities (11,407) (5,589)
B A Non-current liabilities (215,712) (105,699)
G E Net assets 19,890 9,746
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June 2019
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules save for the derivation of certain code provisions as disclosed
in the “Corporate Governance Report”. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in “Corporate

Governance Report” on pages 18 to 31.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Further details will be disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2019” of the Company which should be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively
no later than three months after the publication of this annual report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 September 2019
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 142, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter
B o ¢ it g 0

Valuation of investment properties

BUE YA E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with significant judgements associated with determining
the fair value.

A GRS PG A 5 B S R FIE - TG R A
BYRERMGE S MBIRE PG &BELR > M
7 E ST {RLIRE 9 R EE K K B -

The investment properties of the Group represented
commercial and car parking portion and office units located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). As at 30
June 2019, the Group’s investment properties amounted
to HK$2,051,020,000, representing approximately 76%
of the Group’s total assets. During the year, an increase in
fair value of investment properties of HK$3,560,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.
HEMPBEY TR hEE AN RILAE ([ ])
4 7 2 R A5 B35 R 00 DA RO A ME o TR R — LA
H T H o A FBEE Y S A S i 15 2,051,020,000
A R A AT76% o RN B
%“%@%m&%wmmmmaﬂﬁﬁmﬁ%o

The Group’s investment properties were carried at fair
value based on the valuations performed by the independent
qualified professional valuers. Details of the valuation
techniques, significant assumptions and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. The valuations of investment
properties (excluding carparks portions being valued
under the direct comparison approach) were dependent on
certain key inputs that involve the independent qualified
professional valuers’ judgements, including capitalisation
rates and market unit rents of individual units.
HEMBKEWEN L FETI R b B & EREE
il (L R EEAT 2 Al AR o A (EL BT E1F ~ f (6 TR o B9
B R A AN B A T R R A e S AR TE M R 2R 14
HN P ER - BOEY EAMNE (RN DL & kAl
{8 04 45 B35 B0 40 ) BOHR A o B 8 57 45 A% B E A (E
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FA i 7w d o B B S A i o

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

MY A BRMBAT TS

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified professional
valuers;

o RPANE LG E K A (B AT R S RERR X - BB
Ji B

. Understanding the independent qualified
professional valuers’ valuation process and
methodologies, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgemental areas and key inputs used in the
valuations;

o T MR SL G AR SE AN (B AR Al (B RF P 6
B Al E AR AN 7 i - MW RBL - BT IR
GIIEE ICHECPNL] 3 A P EE S Y

RO

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology
and assumptions applied in the valuation by
comparing with industry norms; and

o EE BRAT SE AR UE LU AR o BT AN b (E IRF B B0 5
ERERRZ & B K

. Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs used
in the valuations by comparing to relevant market
information on market unit rents achieved and
capitalisation rates adopted in other comparable
properties in the neighbourhood.

o BT 3 B 5T B 2 B AH 4 00 A B T 35 R
B 30 AT At 2 AN 40 36 T BR 9 B AR AL B R L
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIUZYENIRSE (#)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Keung To Wai, David.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 September 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Other income, gains or losses

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Administrative expenses

Selling expenses

Finance costs

Share of loss of a joint venture

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year
Item that will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation

to presentation currency

Total comprehensive (expense)

income for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (expense)
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents)

Basic

Diluted

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

Wi CRRE CE AR
NOTES 2019 2018
BT 7B M or

HKS$’000 HK$000

5 106,206 113,030
(25,407) (24,316)

80,799 88,714

6 15,894 24,482

14

3,560 88,171
(43,730) (40,461)
(923) (1,019)
7 (4,325) (3,345)
(10,140) (9,949)

8 41,135 146,593
10 8,445 (18,163)
49,580 128,430

(91,249) 58,204

(41,669) 186,634

48,730 126,125

850 2,305

49,580 128,430

(40,919) 183,179

(750) 3,455

(41,669) 186,634

12

215 56.0

20.5 53.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i © B B5 iR N R

REZ—RENA=TR
At 30 June 2019

btz e 2 [ 3 —E—)\4E
NOTES 2019 2018
BT 7B M or
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
ERTUR: ¢ Non-current Assets
LE B TS E ] Property, plant and equipment 13 2,431 1,859
ECa =L/ Investment properties 14 2,051,020 2,136,283
G ERER Interest in a joint venture 15 93,605 80,205
G ERK Amount due from a joint venture 15 215,712 238,283
HCAth, 5 Other asset 1,364 1,423
2,364,132 2,458,053
it W) % Current Assets
Ry 2 Properties held for sale 16 15,441 16,192
A0 3 WA R Loan receivables 17 - _
& by T L Alh JE U B 2K Trade and other receivables 18 30,594 37,796
FE HE I B R R Kk Amount due from a non-controlling 18
shareholder 301 907
SRATHE AT 2K Pledged bank deposits 28 13,065 30,521
SRAT 72 W A7 3K Fixed bank deposits 18 157,679 163,799
SRAT & R I B 4 Bank balances and cash 18 102,835 94,071
319,915 343,286
b RER Current Liabilities
& G B HoAth JBE A B 3K Trade and other payables 19 43,778 47,008
JE A} 56 T Tax payable 91,022 94,718
SRAT BN — Bank loans — 20
JE A — N fE R due within one year 107,759 7,761
242,559 149,487
B A Net Current Assets 77,356 193,799
B A8 DR B 4 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,441,488 2,651,852
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
SOMBRRE &)

REZ-AEANAZTH
At 30 June 2019

Mt 7 e S IR 2 —EN\EF
NOTES 2019 2018
ST 0T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

AR B il A Capital and Reserves
A Share capital 21 228,324 225,174
f¢t Reserves 1,867,332 1,923,824

A2 w6 BEAT N ME AN BE 2% Equity attributable to owners of the

Company 2,095,656 2,148,998

I P L HE 2% Non-controlling interests 36,862 38,186

BB 2% Total Equity 2,132,518 2,187,184

FE W B £ 15 Non-current Liabilities

W|ATER— Bank loans — 20

JH—E AR due after one year - 127,759

% S0 A TE B Deferred tax liabilities 22 293,795 322,594

2R R S e Long-term rental deposits received 15,175 14,315

308,970 464,668

2,441,488 2,651,852

RN FEAOB L HZ GG MBIEIEC R ~%F  The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 142 were
—NWENLA T+ EHBEFEHAZL NIZME  approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

FIED > Ml FAE R ERE September 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:
#HH #HH Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
A e S 8 o 2k Director Director

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 51



52

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mOE@mEME

BREZZNENAZ1HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

AR A AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
SRR AR ok
Bk RO ARG 1. Wl JCRBE MRl BREN ik £ it
Capital Share Non-
Share Share Special  redemption  Translation option Statutory ~ Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve Teserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
BEFT  EFFT BETT WFr  EETT ERFT BETr  EFFT EETT EEFL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(Wit #) (i
(Note a) (Note )
RZF—tEtA-H At uly 2017 225,066 429619 S5018 1,644 204,537 6,343 92451 9442 953,958 1,978,078 3471 2,012,809
A Profit for the year s s - - - - - - 126,125 126,125 2305 18430
EREEHAER Exchange differences
arising on translation - - - - 57,054 - - - - 57,054 1,150 58,204
FERTRASH Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - ST054 - - - 126,125 183,179 3455 186,634
TrlEeB M7 BB 1T Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options 108 54 - - - (40) - - - 122 - vl
BT MR Transfer to other reserve = = = = - - - 87 (87) - - -
ERRARNRE Dividends recognised
(Wit #11%E) as distrbution (note 1) - - - - - - - - 2381 (12380) - (12381
REZ—=ERAZTH  At30June 2018 225,174 429673 S5018 1,644 261,591 6,303 92451 9529 1067615 2,1489%8 38186 2,187,184
FERREA Proft forthe year - - - - - - - - 48730 48730 850 49380
EREE L HEEE Exchange differences
atsing on translation - - - S ) . . . S 6 1)
FERE () Total comprehensive (expense)
WABE income forthe year B, f f S ) § g SR o) 00 d60)
TFHEAREZRAE:  Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options 3,150 1,591 - - - (1,181) - - - 3,560 - 3,560
ARERH Lapse of share options = = = = = (375) = = 375 = = =
HETHMRS Transfer to other reserve - - - - - - - 144 (144) - - =
BB BRI RS Dividends recognised
(Wt 11%) as distribution (note 11) - - - - - - - - (15,983) (15,983) - (15,983)
PRE R Dividends to non-controlling
35} interests - - - - - - - - - - (574) (574)
REZ-REAAZTH At30 June 2019 2834 431,264 35,018 1,644 171942 4147 92451 9,673 1,100,593 2,095,636 36,862 2132518
Mt Notes:
() AEMZERFHEDARETEREATNKEZ () The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate
B o 2 ) IR 2 SR A~ R v AR~ — AR R AR amount of the then share capital, share premium, general reserve and retained
A Vi 1| 22 % (BB A\ ]k i S S T A 8 AT 22 ARy profits of the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of the Company’s
A7 (L[] 2 26 L E A o shares issued for the acquisition in relation to a previous group reorganisation.
() AEBMZHAGMETIEER B AN GG (b) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity
ANZ B R E ZFRANENHA = H IR FRE holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
N> FH A B A AR AR 22 S AR (i B 35 A0 i i of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
JB 2 ) BT R 2 AT R B - A R AR liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the subsidiaries
ZAF AT IR AR 2 2L R A during the year ended 30 June 2006.
(PR) AR B o ) 4 2 0 i (o R O I AR A RS (o) The statutory reserve transferred from retained profits are required by relevant

SR -NE FE U E A

rhaE AR RN (1 B )) Y B 4 W) 22 b A
B 1 Bk B T B E o R JF AR R G i g AR
50% > #C Bk B E B TS R TE I < B R 15 D IR B4R
T A 10% °

7 ) 4 A PR A

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to the
Company’s PRC subsidiary. The amount should not be less than 10% of the profit
after tax as recorded in the statutory financial statements unless the aggregate
amount exceeds 50% of the registered capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mOIREMER

BREZZNENAZ1HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

ZEJus ZE— )\
2019 2018
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
BREXH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
I 38 T Vi A Profit before taxation 41,135 146,593
R Adjustments for:
FlLE WA Interest income (18,585) (17,339)
ERG AL/ YNSRI Increase in fair value of investment properties (3,560) (88,171)
Irgg Depreciation 417 348
WAE s 2 ~ %5 ) Loss on disposals/write off of property,
A e 48 plant and equipment 61 163
AT B Sk rh 2 U (R R Impairment loss reversed in
3% 7] respect of receivables - (236)
il i AR Finance costs 4,325 3,345
GBS EZ R Share of loss of a joint venture 10,140 9,949
KA 2 ME X B51H (I 25)  Unrealised exchange loss (gain), net
%8 4,174 (3,925)
R A T 2 Operating cash flows before movements in
KEBHEHE working capital 38,107 50,727
G 5 R A E U IR 23 4> Decrease (increase) in trade and
(3 m) other receivables 6,080 (613)
B 5y R L Ath JRE ASH B 2 Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
(W) 177 (2,814)
HH &S 4 Cash generated from operations 44,364 47,300
B 4F o B T 15 B K PRC Income Tax paid (7,133) (8,566)

KHEBEH 24 HH  NET CASH FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 37,231 38,734

BT INVESTING ACTIVITIES
&k A R Interest received 4,339 2,853
T2 N SRAT HE A A7 2k Placement of pledged bank deposits - (25,775)
1A SRAT RE A AE 3K Placement of fixed bank deposits (839) (30,433)
B E - B R Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,123) (85)
AR Bl SR AT 8 B AF K Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits 145 74
A 1] SR AT 7 A7 2K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 16,188 =
AH OHR) BB 2 NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING

B4EER ACTIVITIES 18,710 (53,366)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
BIREMES R (#)

BREZRAEAA =T H IR
For the year ended 30 June 2019

e 2 [ 3 R N\E
2019 2018
BT I W or
HKS$’000 HKS$000
% I 8 FINANCING ACTIVITIES
17 BB RO HE 2 By 88 4T Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 3,560 122
i SRAT B K New bank loan raised - 4,000
B SRAT B 3 E Repayment of bank loans (27,761) (11,770)
BT BB Dividends paid (15,983) (12,381)
A A B Interest paid (4,081) (3,077)
MR MES 2B 4E%  NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (44,265) (23,106)
B4 B BLA H A B m NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
(W A) 358 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,676 (37,738)
EPI 2B RB S5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 94,071 128,243
A BE 58 i % 5 ) 2 5 EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE (2,912) 3,566
A2 B4 BB A S - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR,
DLSRAT & 5 B B4 R R represented by bank balances and cash 102,835 94,071

SE-NEZEF-NFEEER | EZOEEARA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i © B 15 BR 1A BiY 5

BEZF AR ST HIREE
For the year ended 30 June 2019
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GENERAL

Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate and
Investor Information” in the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 33.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS$”) as the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider that Hong Kong dollar is the most appropriate
presentation currency in view of the Company’s place of listing.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

HKEFRS 9
HKEFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment

Property
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
n-ZI' (] :g\—j i‘k B'F IE\ Bﬁ DE (#&)

BEZZ-HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
Y BRI FIGE 2 T H | HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related
T M 15 7] amendments

AR AR EEC R I R
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In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for i) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, ii) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets
and iii) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 July 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1 July
2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 30 June
2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 July 2018 are recognised
in the opening retained profits and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.

The Directors reviewed and assessed the financial assets
as at 1 July 2018 based on the facts and circumstances that
existed at that date. All financial assets of the Group continue
to be measured at amortised cost or fair value. Except for the
assessment of impairment under ECL model for financial assets
at amortised cost, the application of HKFRS 9 has had no
significant impact on the classification and measurement of the
financial assets of the Group.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 July 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits (or other components of equity, as appropriate)
and comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the standard retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed at 1 July 2018.

The Directors consider that the application of HKFRS 15
does not have a material impact on the timing and amounts of

revenue recognised in the current and prior years.
Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the

accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are

disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 16 Leases!

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(FRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments!

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material’
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
4 Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the Directors
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and the interpretation will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions
to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to
whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted
as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to
subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows
by the Group.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$3,898,000 as disclosed in note 26.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they

qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers short-term refundable
rental deposits received of HK$12,172,000 and long-term rental
deposits received of HK$15,175,000 as obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would

be considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes
in net assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in that joint venture, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for

sale.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that

are not related to the Group.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as income in the period in which they are earned.

In the event that lease incentives, including rent free periods,
are given to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as deferred rent receivables. The aggregate cost
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental income on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic

benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted
as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the property interest in
leasehold land and development costs including attributable
borrowing costs capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Revenue recognition

(4) Upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(4)

(B)

Upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress

towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Prior to 1 July 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable

for services provided in the normal course of business.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(B) Priorto 1 July 2018 (Continued)
Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the following conditions
are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the properties, which is when the construction
of relevant properties has been completed, upon
delivery, and collectability of related receivables is

reasonably assured,

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the properties

are sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated

with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior
to meeting all the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position under current liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(B) Priorto 1 July 2018 (Continued)
Others

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Lease incentives provided to the lessees
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the respective
term of the lease.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
(i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties will
be recovered).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entity with
functional currency of Renminbi are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a settlement date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers, which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 July 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.

(4)

Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(4)

Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including amount due from a joint venture,
loan receivables, trade and other receivables, amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder, bank deposits,
bank balances and financial guarantee contracts). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(4) Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(M)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party
to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing the financial instrument for impairment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition of
a loan commitment, the Group considers changes in
the risk of a default occurring on the loan to which
a loan commitment relates; for financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes in the
risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.

The Group considers the default has occurred
when the instrument is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
have reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

™

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is
the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if
the holder of the loan commitments draws down the
loan, and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on
loan commitments for which the effective interest
rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply
a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to
the extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee

period.

For undrawn loan commitments, the loss allowances

are the present value of the difference between:

(a) the contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitment
draws down the loan: and

(b) the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive if the loan is drawn down.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(4)

Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when the Group transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continue to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of it liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank loans and long-term rental deposits received) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(4)

Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is

subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised

over the guarantee period.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’ obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a
financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(4)

(B)

Upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 (Continued)

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities (Continued)

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly,
such exchange of debt instruments or modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs
or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term. Any
adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability
is recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B)

Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including amount due from a joint
venture, loan receivables, trade and other receivables,
amount due from a non-controlling shareholder, bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio beyond the invoice date, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B)

Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B)

Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank loans and long-term rental deposits received) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B)

Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and building are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The recoverable
amount of tangible assets are estimated individually, when it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
Contingent asset

A contingent asset is not recognised until the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not
contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing
similar services

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions and vested at the grant date
is expensed as share-based payment expenses immediately on
the date of grant, with a corresponding increase in share option
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a
result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT”) on disposal of its investment properties.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)
Classification of unsold properties as properties held for sale

During the year, the management of the Company has actively
marketed its unsold properties held for sale which are available
for sale in the ordinary course of business. As at 30 June
2019, certain units of properties held for sale with carrying
amount HK$12,845,000 (2018: HK$13,402,000) have been
rented out temporarily. The Directors have intention to hold
these properties for sale, and accordingly, these units are still
classified as properties held for sale in the consolidated financial

statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties (including commercial and car parking portion
and office units) are carried at a total fair value of
HK$2,051,020,000 (2018: HK$2,136,283,000) based on the
valuations performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. The valuations of investment properties (excluding
carparks portions being valued under the direct comparison
approach) were arrived at by reference to market evidence of
recent transaction prices for similar properties and/or on the
basis of discounted cash flow projections based on estimates of
future rental income from properties using capitalisation rates
and market unit rents of individual units as inputs. In relying on
the valuation, management has exercised its judgement and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for loan receivables and trade and other
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the loan
receivables and trade and other receivables. The provision rates
are based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, loan receivables and trade and other
receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s loan receivables
and trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 31.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of performance focused on
the location of the properties for property rental and property
sales.

The property rental segment includes property leasing operation
in the PRC. The Group’s investment properties portfolio, which
mainly consists of offices, shopping mall and carparks, are
located in Shanghai and Beijing, the PRC. The property sales
segment includes sales of the Group’s trading properties in
Beijing, the PRC.

The revenue from property rental is recognised over time and
the revenue from property sale is recognised at a point in time.

These divisions, property rental and property sales analysed
based on distinct geographical locations, are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments”.
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(HY) 23 BUBCA Be 38 B

A £ A AR AR T 2 WA e SE AR
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(a)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment for the year:

SV

Property rental

BT
Property sales

L IR Ex gh
Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated

SR ZZ-NE ZR-E ZZE BB SR Rk CZAE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
EWTL  EFTFL EWTL EFTFT BWTL EFTC 0 BRFTLC EFTC
HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$ 000

ARBA SEGMENT REVENUE

BA REVENUE

o E External sales 36,774 36,881 69,432 76,149 - - 106,206 113,030
s £ SEGMENT RESULT 11,003 48,846 B350 129,160 (199) %) 84327 177,763
FAmEREA Unallocated other income 13,199 21,721
i WA i Unallocated corporate expenses (41,926) (39.597)
W& A Finance costs 4325) (3,345)
AELEZERME  Share of loss of a joint venture (10,140) (9.949)
o B i o Profit before taxation 41,135 146,593

K8 M 2 & UK B B RE
53 T PT At A 4 [ B & wH O A
[d] o 73 1 3€ B4 & 70 BU 2t A
(5 18) - 1 3 48 73 BE AT B
BEA AT A B A - LI AR
(B 18) ~ &8 & XK Bt
FLEBA - GESEZERD#
B il A o BTGk 0 L B IR B
ERCESINCE & - A
Y
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The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment result represents the profit (loss) from each
segment without the allocation of central administration
costs, bank interest income, exchange gain (loss), imputed
interest income on amount due from a joint venture,
share of loss of a joint venture and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the Board of Directors for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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5. WAESBER ) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(C) ¥t kAl (b) Segment assets and liabilities

E SN S
Property rental Property sales
93 L 93 i

Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated

SR-RE ZENE R0k ZEAFE ZBuE ZZ0E SR 230k
2019 2018 2019 218 2019 2018 2019 218
BETL  EETC WL EFFC BWFL EETL BWTL EFTx
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000

Y ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 653,179 692,250 1,402,948 1,449,685 20,785 20,429 2,076,912 2,162,364
ABLERES Interest in a joint venture 93,605 80,205
AERERK Amount due from a joint venture 215,712 238,283
FARAELE Unallocated corporate assefs 297818 320,487
RREEAH Consolidated total assets 2684047 2,801,339
Ak LIABILITIES
B R Segment liabilities 6,462 6,993 30,328 31,903 10,836 12,638 47,626 51,534
ANEEEARE Unallocated corporate liabilities 503,903 562,621
meARAH Consolidated total liabilities 551,529 614,155
B B PER TR A 43 JE R B K IR 4 For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
fic. - and allocating resources between segments:

- BRAaEbh¥#EE - FEMAE

all assets are allocated to operating segments other

R~ BRATAER ~ RATH: R than interest in a joint venture, amount due from
F B & DL K HoAh s 25 E a joint venture, bank deposits, bank balances and
Ah o B EE T4 5 R cash and other corporate assets; and
R K

— BRI G B A REAT RN K = all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
— A B A E 2 R - other than amount due to a related company
HBLTE - SRAT K - IBERL included in trade and other payables, tax payable,
TH A fE X HAh > 2E A &S bank loans, deferred tax liabilities and other
A H8 AR T BE A KRB ) corporate liabilities.
¥ o
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

5. WAESBER ) 5.

(W) oAby BUE R

B 1
Property rental
£ L
Beijing Shanghai

hE FAE

Sk
019 ) 019 218

T
HES000

B#FT EETD

HKS 000 HKS'000

£ G

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(©

Other segment information

VES

Property sales
R il

Segment Total Unallocated Consolidated
e Sy e SK e S % i "
019 § 019 ) 019
L #iL EKTT #TE
HES'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

Beijing
oo

HES'000 HKS 000 HKS 000

e Amounts included in the
IMEERE measure of segment result
PEEER orsegment asets and
Azl lsbites
LS Capital expendiures - - - - 316 - 316 - 807 ) 113 )
& Depreciation - - - - 101 106 101 106 316 42 47 348
FBRUR B Tmpaimment loss eversed in
BEREEE respect of eceivables, net - - - (236) - - - (236) - - - (236)
REWEATEZ  (Deorease) increase i fair
(0) st value of nvestment
properis wm s 13782 655 : - 3560 8,171 : - 3560 8,171
(7)) IR % (d) Geographical information
ALEE A B AINEF 2RI A All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are

ToRL i B (s BRAh) o

2 B R 2 IO A O U
FE BRI (E AN R

T (kRS
o

Hong Kong

AR bk B R E AR
MTA-
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PRC (other than Hong Kong)

located in the PRC (other than Hong Kong).

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
non-current assets analysed by the geographical area in
which the assets are located:

Ik UL ) o R i L
Carrying amount of
non-current assets

S = N
2019 2018
T T HHT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
2,147,056 2,218,347
1,364 1,423
2,148,420 2,219,770

The Group’s non-current assets above exclude financial
instruments.
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ORI M T (&)
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5. WA B o BB ) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
() A 45 [ A 4 B — &% 5 A A AR (e) The Group does not have major customers as no single
B2 [ B R 10% 0t A > O A R customer contributes more than 10% of the Group’s
BEF o revenue.
6. JABWCA - Wi ok 6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES

e 2 - 3 TE )\
2019 2018

#W T T T
HKS$°000 HKS$'000

HAge A ~ de 2k sk 545 © Included in other income, gains or

losses are:

ERAT AR A Bank interest income 4,730 3,649
LRCSC EEOR @ REE ) Exchange (loss) gain, net (5,841) 4,006

BB AERKZ BEFLE Imputed interest income on amount due
e A from a joint venture 13,855 13,690

7. BB 7.  FINANCE COSTS

e S [ 3 e SVAN S
2019 2018
BN T BT T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
SRAT i B B Interest on bank borrowings 4,086 3,115
HAth £ B R A Other borrowing costs 239 230
4,325 3,345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
r 6 B 15 BR 18 BiY 5E (a)
BREZRAEAA =T H IR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
8. BB Wi ik A 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

—
2019

#W T
HK$°000

5% A 1 Va8 A1 E F0BR (5T A Profit before taxation has been arrived

—ER— N4
2018
T T
HK3$°000

T 54518 - at after charging (crediting):
A% 45 i ) Auditor’s remuneration 1,640 1,630
Eii= Depreciation 417 348
IR €L/ I £ Loss on disposals/write off of property,
WA 1R plant and equipment 61 163
MAEZEEHEHE Operating lease rentals in respect of
office premises 3,189 3,038
EE M (ML 5E9 () JE)  Directors’ emolument (note 9(a)) 4,188 3,904
HoAth B T A< Other staff costs
AL FE IR RAE A 518 B4 2 Staff costs excluding retirement
B LA benefit costs 11,584 10,701
AR R AR A FT S A Retirement benefits costs 640 665
HoAth B T a7 4858 Total other staff costs 12,224 11,366
JRE Wt B 3k 2 i (E Impairment loss reversed in respect of
i 8 3% | receivables - (236)
B Wi B JRE i 4% 45 FHL 65 FH 4 Net operating lease rentals received and
T # receivable
Evd LB S itk Gross rents from investment
properties (106,206) (113,030)
W BB 2 T E A Less: Direct expenses from
BT investment properties 25,279 24,181
(80,927) (88,849)
9. Y KR H M 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
(H) sS4 (a) Directors’ emoluments
ZZE—JUE —F— /)4
2019 2018
BWT I T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
A Directors’ fees
HATHESE Executive 2,160 2,080
WAL EMATE S Independent non-executive 1,920 1,720
Al P < Other emoluments
4 M H At A ) Salaries and other benefits - =
B ARAE F w3 4 3K Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme 108 104
4,188 3,904

SE-NEZZ-NEEER | ENEEA RS A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
ORI M T (&)

BE R -HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

—F— )N The emoluments paid or payable to each of the sixteen

(2018: twelve) Directors were as follows:

52k WA
KBRS

Salaries  Contributions
and other  to retirement
benefits benefits scheme
BY¥TL BRI
HEKS$000 HEKS$000

Executive Directors
Dr. TAN Lucio C. (iote v) 160 - 8 168
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan (note vii) 400 - 20 420
Mrs. TAN Carmen K. (note vi) 160 - 8 168
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 280 - 14 294
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 280 - 14 294
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 240 - 12 252
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 320 - 16 336
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao (note vi) 160 - 8 168
Mr. TAN Harry Chua (note i) 80 - 4 84
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (note ii) 80 - 4 84
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 400 - - 400
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 400 - - 400
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 400 - - 400
Mr. NGU Angel (note viii) 120 - - 120
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao (note iv) 360 - - 360
Dr. SY Robin Chua (note iii) 240 - - 240
4,080 - 108 4,188

FER RIR
A

Salaries  Contributions

andother  to retirement
 Fees benefits  benefits scheme Total
EWFL EETL BFTL BFFx
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000

Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 320 = 16 336
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 280 - 14 204
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 240 - 12 252
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 240 - 12 252
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 280 - 14 294
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 320 - 16 336
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 400 - 20 420
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 400 - - 400
Dr. SY Robin Chua 360 - - 360
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 400 - - 400
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 360 - - 360
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao 200 - - 200
3,800 - 104 3,904
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9. HHFEEBEME &)

(W) #ge W4 (A7)

— - BRUKWEER T NEF AR
HABEAR A R £/ RPATEDS -

T BRI LER SE - EF AN
FHBAT A AT B RATHE -

[l

SY Robin Chua f# -+ % =2 — JL4F U
A = = H BT A F 8L AT
# o

P9 - TAN Kenway Hao %% /£ % —%F — JL4F
JUA +— B B A2 B8 S 9F AT
#HH o

Ho BOREE LR F U =A A
WERAL Sy B G L AL A BT
B o

75~ TAN Carmen K. % - 2 TAN Vivienne Khao
LR R —JUE =AU H AT 5

KRunmRATEDS -
£ HMAOWEER-FE—JE=HANA
HERAT Ry AR W ARHAT BUR > R

WEF—JUERA + A ETAE A
AT EARE -

JNU~ NGU Angel 6 AR = F — JLAE T H
T HBERAT AN F B AL AT E
H o

U~ EBIHATE S R R
AN 7] R A 45 S 4R 41 1 IR
¥ oo

T EIIB R RATE RS R
AR Sy A B 2 T 4 (R AR S o

(&) & B M4

T A T TR > A EE A A
I R R BTN L
&k 1H O £ SCHERESRO () JH
Ao T 4% d e B N 2 P 4

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

i.

iii.

vi.

Vii.

viii.

Mr. TAN Harry Chua retired as the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company on 6 December 2018.

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank retired as the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive director of the Company on 6 December 2018.

Dr. SY Robin Chua resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 23 April 2019.

Mr. TAN Kenway Hao resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 11 September 2019.

Dr. TAN Lucio C. was appointed as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and an executive director of the Company on 4 March
2019.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K. and Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao were
appointed as executive directors of the Company on 4 March
2019.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan was appointed as the acting Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 4 March 2019 and re-
designated as the Chief Executive Officer on 10 May 2019.

Mr. NGU Angel was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 10 May 2019.

The Executive Directors” emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as Directors of the Company.

Employees’ emoluments

No Directors were included in the five highest paid

individuals for both years. Details of Directors’

emoluments are set out in note 9(a) above. The

emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are as

T follows:
e S I3 TR — )\
2019 2018
T BT o
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FER B 4 KRG Basic salaries and allowances 5,147 4,761
BB LEEL Performance related bonuses 379 355
R AE At # I 3K Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme 252 238
5,778 5,354
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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BE R -HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

9. HPKEAME ) DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES®
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
() mBEM £ () (b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)
5 2 B4 A7 SN AL A The emoluments were within the following bands:
eEEH
Number of employees
ZZ A —E— 4
2019 2018

4 22 5 5 1,000,000 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 3
¥ 1,000,001 7C % HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

7 11,500,000 7T 1 2
i ¥ 1,500,001 7T £ HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

7 2,000,000 7T 2 _

10. B 10. TAXATION
e 2 I 3 —E— \4E
2019 2018
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
BLIE (F05R) wAELHE The tax (credit) charge comprises:
HRF P Fr i3 B (F#BRSN)  Current tax in the PRC
(other than Hong Kong)
AR Current year 7,014 7.404
WA N R (REAR) YA Under(over)provision in prior years 91 (457)
7,105 6,947

IAEBLIE (FUBR) FEA Deferred tax (credit) charge

(Mt 7t 552208 (note 22) (15,550) 11,216

(8,445) 18,163

PR A% S T 7S T A JEE A MG IR SR di
A > O A A S B R IE I S B A 9 BT
3B HE A o

R P 2 N R LD B A 2T 15 B T
(BB LS ERILE
i 00T R S A R 5 /N Wl 57
F525% o

AN T TE A s T 0 R L BE S LY
HTHB AR ZEMBLA KR AZ%E
SN EIE R ERR B A & A B
W A B A Bl A 10% F25% o

0 S L TH B R B S B E 2522 7H
A o

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiary is
25%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong and the British Virgin Islands are subject to withholding
tax ranging from 10% to 25% on their taxable rental income,

management fee income and interest income in the PRC.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 22.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

10. BEHH (47) 10. TAXATION (Continued)

B BIERRE A ZFF/NAF The EIT Law also requires withholding tax upon distribution
— A — H & - 5 IR v B A S5 BT i of profits earned by the PRC entities since 1 January 2008 at
1) s | IFF 28 5 58 5% 1) TE F0 B o it 2 5%. At the end of the reporting period, deferred taxation of
MR o e R A A BRI R HK$2,634,000 (2018: HK$2,654,000) has been provided for in
& A I BS BR JH N R R AR A B IH 2 the consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary
HE #52.634,000 70 ( . F — )\U4F - #E differences attributable to such profits.

2,654,00070) °

AR RN BLIE (F0BR) FFACAT LA A 45 The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the
it S A A T W i 7R 2 B B HT U ) profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

MRUnF -

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

—2—JuE —F— )4
2019 2018

T e
HKS$°000 HKS$'000

IR L i i A1)

e R 25% 2 TS B Sl (2
F— )\ 1 25%)

F OB TR RS S m] 033 2 B
g%

FHE B IE AN T BB 2 B
2
WA R B TS M 1R 2 B S R 2
B E S B
AT AN CBAH) A
B DA AR R R 0 AT 0 e g
5

A B TE AR B 2 AN [R] i 5 36 B )
N Z R

Wi JE > ) >R 20 T ik A1) < T A Bt
v 7B A 22 A S JH B 1R

o 3 (R B BB W 2 2 B
HoAts

Brig®t (4nkR) s A

Profit before taxation 41,135 146,593

Income tax expense at the applicable

rate of 25% (2018: 25%) 10,284 36,648
Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purpose 5,845 2,277
Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purpose (3,477) (3,404)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 4,675 4,482
Tax effect of share of loss of a joint

venture 2,535 2,487
Under(over)provision in prior years 91 457)

Utilisation of deductible temporary

difference previously not

recognised (2,613) (7,810)
Effect of different tax rate for

subsidiaries in respect of

withholding tax (12,528) (20,870)
Deferred tax liabilities resulting from

withholding tax on undistributed

profits of a subsidiary 91 88
Effect of LAT on investment

properties (13,388) 4,679
Others 40 43
Income tax (credit) charge (8,445) 18,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. JBEA

FRBEZE-ZF - N\FERA=T

11.

&6 91 5 BR 18 Bt 5% (=)

BREZ-AEANAZTHIEERE
For the year ended 30 June 2019
DIVIDENDS

s
2019

—E— /)\4E
2018
T T
HK$’000

T
HK$°000

Final dividend paid in respect of year

HIEHEEEIRE AR ES  ended 30 June 2018 of 4 Hong

R a4l (& — L4 + %  Kong cents (2017: 3 Hong Kong

B34l cents) per share 9,133 6,752
HBEZE —F—JL/NH =1+ Interim dividend paid in respect of

H Ik 4F B 2 IR ¥ b ik B year ended 30 June 2019 of 3 Hong

SR W3l (—F — \4F : # Kong cents (2018: 2.5 Hong Kong

#2541l cents) per share 6,850 5,629

15,983 12,381

RAEH AANAEFECLEERES
ZEJUENH =+ H IR R &
BB B Al > A 3L 9,293,000
JC > MEZE fF B RO BE R A R g BE
;@o

12. RN

AN F A N G B I A I i
AT AR DL B R A

BA

PGB R A
4830 25 ] B9 1 A
(AR 2% R HEA N AR BE A B A ik

Earnings

12.

At the reporting date, the final dividend in respect of 4 Hong
Kong cents per share totalling HK$9,293,000 for the year ended
30 June 2019 has been proposed by the Board of Directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

s
2019

—E— \4f
2018
BT T
HKS$°000

T
HK$’000

Earnings for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share
(profit for the year attributable to
FI) owners of the Company)

48,730 126,125

I B3 ¥ H Number of shares
FAVERH B FEA A 2 48  Weighted average number of ordinary
JB o E - £ B B shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 226,930,941 225,092,393
R TS B Y A e S R 2 B Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares on share options 11,025,912 12,978,589
WO IR 2 R Number of ordinary shares for the
5 i H purpose of diluted earnings
per share 237,956,853 238,070,982
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
r 6 B 15 BR 18 BiY 5E (a)

BREZZ—NAENA =1 H R4

For the year ended 30 June 2019

13. W3k - BN Be i

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At Ha%
)3 52 L1 N3 )8 Hp
Leasehold Office
land and Motor equipment
building vehicles and others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
JEAR COoST
W oZ—tHFELH—H At 1 July 2017 1,634 5,800 3,006 10,440
8 Exchange realignment 48 111 89 248
NE Additions _ _ 85 85
HE Disposals/write off _ (1,589) 33) (1,622)
WoFE—NENAZF+H  At30June 2018 1,682 432 3,147 9,151
S A Exchange realignment (70) (180) (130) (380)
INE Additions = 1,078 45 1,123
e/ 8 Disposals/write off _ 275) (85) (360)
REZF—-REANZTH  At30 June 2019 1,612 4,945 2,977 9,534
it DEPRECIATION
Ao E—tEELH—H At 1 July 2017 767 4,750 2,709 8,226
S R Exchange realignment 24 78 75 177
A A U A Provided for the year 81 166 101 348
T B Eliminated on disposals/write off - (1,430) (29) (1,459)
MZF—=NEAA=ZTH  At30June 2018 872 3,564 2,856 7,292
SR Exchange realignment (37 (151) (119) (307)
A JE WA Provided for the year 77 278 62 417
& B 8 Eliminated on disposals/write off _ (48) 1) (299)
REZZ-WAEAAZHH At30June 2019 912 3,443 2,748 7,103
W i 44 CARRYING AMOUNTS
RZZF—EAHZTH  At30 June 2019 700 1,502 229 2,431
MZF—=NEAA=TH  At30June2018 810 758 291 1,859

A 4R T A B o R M 2 R T (R BL 3
BE 74 o BB 4 € o f R L B ERECR fig
i H R M AR 2 T AT AT SR 4
B> HOBEEMESBAMERE -

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and building
comprises a property situated in the PRC. As the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is classified as finance lease.
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Y - PR N )

TE 7% 18 B H AL G R BR 1R > LAY
3 Bdr LRI B R R SRR

B Hh R i 52 A 1 S 204F

(LA i o o e )
BT 15% % 20%
IS 3 R S A 10% % 33.3%

BEYE

ORI M T (&)

BREZZ—NAENA =1 H L4
For the year ended 30 June 2019

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated at the following rates per annum after taking into
account of their estimated residual values:

Leasehold land and building Over shorter of lease term

and 20 years

15% to 20%

10% to 33.3%

Motor vehicles
Office equipment and others

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

T oo
HKS$000

AVAL
R_F—-tHELtH—H
S0 8
L A B2l 2

RE=F—NFEXNA=1H
D8 (E 3 A 18 4R A ke R

REF—JUEANA=1H

W oE—JUER —E— NENH =T
H o> REEBEYZE (B EKF
o B A B IT) 2 O P {E ) AR 5 B
A S5 ) SN 4 BE L 2 M ST G R A
(R Fifi 2 ) (55— S 380 40k 107 A (8 B 22
BRI A R T > %% H T 2 A
B> KB A8 G R0 A B
i A5 AL ) SEHEAT A (E 2 5858 o fh(E Y
PRAN 2 vk 2 28 T 1 2 ) it L iR
BB 22 B AR o T IR R AN AR
EEk A Y S IR 2 L& A
B ARAL Sl B ) 2 2 T A AR I PR
RN R | S @/ G (£ 2 B | ]
M A 2 I g 1 BE U 163,560,000 0 (&
— J\4E  #:188,171,00000) BN R A
WERR o A EWEB i o

FAIR VALUE
At 1 July 2017 1,990,736
Exchange realignment 57,376
Increase in fair value recognised in

profit or loss 88,171
At 30 June 2018 2,136,283
Exchange realignment (88,823)
Increase in fair value recognised in

profit or loss 3,560
At 30 June 2019 2,051,020

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties (including
commercial and car parking portion and office units) as at
30 June 2019 and 2018 has been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group with appropriate
qualification and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at with adoption of the direct comparison approach by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
market and where appropriate, adopted the investment method
by capitalising the rental income of the properties derived from
the existing tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the properties. The revaluation gave rise to
a net gain arising from increase in fair value of HK$3,560,000
(2018: HK$88,171,000) which has been recognised in profit or
loss. All the investment properties are situated in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
n-ZI' (] :g\—j i‘k B'F IE\ Bﬁ DE (#&)

BEZZ-HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

14.

BE&YEw

oA S I 25 L 5 547 702 L 6
SRR A (2 ) 3 O
4 749 DA T 7 DR -

WA B ARACAE L T F R FF Al 4%
YR I E AN BIAR A TR (B
A b BT R 45 EE 8 B 4 Ah) 5
AR AL He = A R B 1 T 3 B oo A
4 o K E | VEIE £ I A E AL
WENHEE - SRWHEN > fHE
A Al 2R B B 4.50% 2 5.25% (& — N\
A 450%F525%) 0 FRon By ORI
CIR %3 1N S K < N (o2
REHEHATFEBD » RZINE - ¢
AT L Y 2E 1 T 35 R 4 2K A YR B B 7
MG E T4 #EHEH ST K
A B #9672 8 F 7 ok N R #2210
(ZF—NF P ARARKMTLE
B NRME217T) » EmbS—
(N NI k=3 NG SCI: b [1h1)
LT e e EM A TTEYS N K2
IR -

16 B B BOE AN E R » F R FFAG A7
R A = R R S NI
EOLE >y RS H A IR 2w
K BE T Bon S BRI R > %
i #5207,125,000 0 ( & — LA
%WNwmmwﬁ o fii 45 B35 T
HOnS B - E R ORI B & A
LR A REEbEE T AR
200,000 & A K #220,000 76 (—ZF—/\
A0 N R 200,000 7T £ A R 220,000
7 ) Y AT EE 9 T 5 R T i RE - 3
1 R T 45 B T 8 5 AE R BN P (E 1Y
o K Z IR o
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AEBEBEYEMET AV EHE
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties of the Group held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are

measured using the fair value model for both years.

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the investment
properties (except for carparks portions in Beijing, the PRC)
under the income capitalisation approach were the capitalisation
The
capitalisation rate used, taking into account of the capitalisation

rates used and market unit rents of individual units.

of rental income potential, nature of the property, prevailing
market condition, ranging from 4.50% to 5.25% (2018: 4.50%
to 5.25%) represents the significant unobservable input. An
increase in the capitalisation rate used would result in a decrease
in fair value and vice versa. Market unit rent of individual
unit used, derived from the market rentals from comparable
properties with a range of RMB96/sq.m. to RMB221/sq.m.
(2018: RMB94/sq.m. to RMB217/sq.m.) per month represents
another significant unobservable input. An increase in the
market unit rent would result in an increase in fair value and

vice versa.

Key unobservable input used in valuing the carparks portions
in Beijing, the PRC amounting to HK$207,125,000 (2018:
HK$205,314,000) under direct comparison approach was
the market unit sales rate with adjustment on other factors,
such as time and location. Market unit sales of carparks used,
derived from the markets unit sales comparables with a range
of RMB200,000 to RMB220,000 (2018: RMB200,000 to
RMB220,000) per unit, represents the significant unobservable
input. An increase in the market unit sales used would result in

an increase in fair value and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties is classified
as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers

into or out of Level 3 during both years.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15 FEAERMERHEARERK

ORI M T (&)

BE R -HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

—Z—heE it SN

2019 2018

BT T T

HKS$°000 HKS$°000

BERA > I BT Cost of investment, unlisted 188,154 164,826
e B 4% s 8L % fats A 11 43 Share of post-acquisition losses and

reserves (94,549) (84,621)

93,605 80,205

HEAERK Amount due from a joint venture 215,712 238,283

Vi Note:

TRYININ e 8 4 3 A PR /) (T ) 7y eh A &
A3 Ak A F R A o AR AT S A
SN AT BE50% 4% ZEHE - B AE A 4 B R AG I
R ERG HHIRE -

T R A A T o A A [ B eh Ty R I Y
HEAE 5 ik 02 b I PR A AR 2 5 o W9 UE PR O AT
Feal i B B AL S R E R g R %
TN R =% — TR ) Rk

TE R YT o A% 58 [ ) I HE AN R 42,840,000 TG
1 J5 & LA - Ak 1 3 T A HE 73 19 80% o AR 4B —
TFAE MR E D - P 2 G T AR AR
21,000,000 7T - H AR F K vh O A B B 1 43
& A R #10,290,000 76 & A B #10,710,000 T >
T A 45 B Je b Oy 5 G R 43 A R A I 3 2 i
HE 15 49% K 51% o A< 58 [ 7€ 42 {1 1 fn & A N R ¥
32,550,000 7C I £ 25 [ A 5 A< 45 (8] 1i) 311 3 1 i i B

Fe
k ©

BEAh > =T — AR i i e TR0 SRR A A A TR
1 A 40 A 1 I 5 6 4 vl R R ISR
Y — 0 - b T % A B M 2 80% A T o

H o ZZIUEARH =4 H RSB > A 5 4 Ho A
A1 122 5 HEHE 5 49% LA HE 2 35 FE AR I 2 1
LES P/ BEIE SRSV Rk S E S IR
ZEERAMOCWMREG A AR -

17 B AP 7 A 1 A8 R B R 25
A 0 (6 0m 3 W) o o A 24 R 2 Bk
5 R TR Sk 7 WA — B B M
SRR A SR SR 631% 8 3
110,368,000 7T (% — /U4« #110,368,000 7T )
R AR -

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) was a sino-foreign
equity joint venture company and indirectly held by the Company. The Group was
able to exercise 50% voting power in the joint venture, which was determined by
the proportion of the Group’s representatives in the board of directors of Zhen
Wah.

The Group had lodged petitions for international arbitrations in respect of the
dispute with the Chinese joint venture partner as to the percentages of equity
interest held in Zhen Wabh in prior years. Two arbitral proceedings were heard
and two arbitral awards were made by China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission in 2008 and 2010.

Before the arbitrations, the Group injected RMB42,840,000 as investment cost
to Zhen Wabh, representing 80% of equity interests in Zhen Wah. Pursuant to the
arbitral award made in 2008, the registered capital of Zhen Wah was confirmed
to be RMB21,000,000, of which RMB10,290,000 and RMB10,710,000 were
contributed by the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner, respectively, and
that the equity interests of Zhen Wah were held by the Group and the Chinese
joint venture partner as to 49% and 51%, respectively. The additional capital
contribution of RMB32,550,000 by the Group was considered as advances to Zhen
Wabh by the Group.

Also, the arbitral award made in 2010 supported the distribution of profit arising
from relevant income generated from a piece of land held by Zhen Wah located in
Tung Kok Tau, Shenzhen, the PRC before re-development entitled by the Group
should be 80%.

The assets and liabilities of Zhen Wah were deconsolidated and the Group’s share
of net assets and results in Zhen Wah had been accounted for as a joint venture
under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah
since the year ended 30 June 2009.

The distribution of profit arising from relevant income was accounted for under
the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah. The
additional share of 31% up to 30 June 2019 which has not been recognised by
the Group amounted to HK$10,368,000 (2018: HK$10,368,000), as the Directors
consider the result of the arbitration is subject to the agreement of the Chinese
joint venture partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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BRE-Z-NEAA=ZTHILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

GR-EE3 EVEL:Ee T &
(#)

15.

Wiat : ()

NEWLEHCR =T —WE—F +XHEW -
I 5 0 B 7 B BRE A S AL AN - R
AR AR L R 0 S I HE 2 FRE o o B A AR AR
A JEE 1 AT S I 2 R RO B 2 A — MR
B AE IR A -

AR o B0k FE AR AR DA RS SR I T 22 A o
IR 35 R 3 A B R 2 > R U e I8 AR %
BTG ART > DIER R N E RO RAFAE
HEHE KGR ERERZERGEB TSN
M LT BB Ty o A B B R R
WM ARG — N SER - JRIL > AR LI
Ty A SR WA & 7 A 2l DAUKE 25 35 R R A A B

BRI -

A 3 R SR AT B AR R R T
AR ER o R AF 6% (& — /U4
6% ) L W A 242 8 6 A A -

RO AR A N AR B A R
ZF—JUEEIS A = H 4 Rl 2 193,605,000 TG S
e #215,712,000 76 19 7] Wi [ BE 7 o AR 48 YIl 2 f A
) 1) A S R T R U A T(E > T e
B REA & T A o
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15.

P Vi

Place of

Name of joint venture

TR Y2 6 5 > 2 fR A 7
Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
Enterprises Ltd.

Mat Yl ERE IR = —UE—F+AHEE

Mo 2 A% > YN KR H AR R B IE AT T
oo

— L ER |

7 ) 4 A PR A

establishment

H 2
PRC

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Both joint
venture partners of Zhen Wah determined not to extend its operation period and
an application was lodged to liquidate Zhen Wah in prior year. The PRC court
accepted the application for liquidation of Zhen Wah and appointed a law firm in
the PRC as the liquidation committee of Zhen Wah in prior year.

Based on the PRC laws and regulations and the related interpretations by an
external PRC legal counsel engaged by the Group, after the expiry of the operation
period and even during the liquidation process, the legal identity of Zhen Wah
still exists and the net assets of Zhen Wah will be distributed to the joint venture
partners based on their equity contributions after the completion of the liquidation.
The Directors expect that the liquidation process will not complete within one
year. Accordingly, the Directors continue to account for Zhen Wah as a joint
venture of the Group using the equity method of accounting in these consolidated
financial statements.

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured and to be repayable after the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The amount is carried at
amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 6% (2018: 6%) per annum.

The Directors have assessed the recoverability of interest in a joint venture
and amount due from a joint venture amounting to HK$93,605,000 and
HKS$215,712,000, respectively, as at 30 June 2019. Based on the latest financial
information and fair value of net assets of Zhen Wah, the Directors have concluded
that the amounts will be fully recoverable.

Details of credit loss assessment of the amount due from a joint venture for the
year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in note 31.

Particulars of the joint venture as at 30 June 2018 and 2019 are as
follows:

7 45 B 5 A A
The Group’s

EHEEH

equity interest Principal activity

49% KL R (M)
49% Operation ceased (Note)

Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter,

Zhen Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6 8 ¥ R 18 Bt 5% (&)

BE R -HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT

DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Summarised financial information prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs in respect of the Group’s joint venture which is
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

—Z—JuiE —E—)N\E

2019 2018

BT T T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

Non-current assets 214,689 223,704
Current assets 32,320 40,812
Current liabilities (11,407) (11,927)
Non-current liabilities (215,712) (238,283)
19,890 14,306

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

followings:
L
2019 2018
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Cash and cash equivalents 23,140 31,246
Non-current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables
and provision) (215,712) (238,283)

e 2 [T 3
ANH=1+H
1EAE
Year ended
30 June 2019
BT
HKS$’000

—FE—NF
ANH=1+H
14

Year ended
30 June 2018
T or
HK$°000

Revenue — —

Loss for the year (20,694) (20,305)
Other comprehensive income for the year 432 1,265
Total comprehensive expense for the year (20,262) (19,040)
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= © U 15 B8R 18 Bt 5T (@)

BEZZ-HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

15 FERARMER HEEEXRK

15.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT

(%)

FaltF R B RaEmT

DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The above loss for the year include the followings:

—E -
ANH=+H
k42
Year ended
30 June 2019
BT
HKS$’000

—E— /)\4f
~NH="1TH
1E4F B
Year ended

30 June 2018
7B W or
HK$°000

P85 I i Depreciation and amortisation 4,251 4,257
B A Interest income 3 3
B Interest expense 13,855 13,690

o] B 2t S B R A B A AR 4 S
e L P9 T 0 1 5 788 i SR HEE i P BR AT (L

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

e SR 2 RN\
2019 2018
BT T T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
GEAETFEE Net assets of joint venture 19,890 14,306
A R B A EHE AR Y Proportion of the Group’s ownership
Ha interest in a joint venture 49% 49%
9,746 7,010
BUE B S I A — Deemed capital contribution —
CERANSY N imputed interest income 83,859 73,195
KEBEGE B ERRR T Carrying amount of the Group’s
HE T (B interest in a joint venture 93,605 80,205
16. fEEPRk 16. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

A4 [ 1E S Y T R e i 2
WK ETHEVEE LS
e #12,845000 70 ( —F — J\4F ¢ ¥
13,402,000 G ) & ® RF L o #E F — H
AR TR A R ENEEYE
KREZRAZEWENESE > mil

R THEM AR

The properties held for sale of the Group are situated in the
PRC. At the end of the reporting period, certain units of
properties held for sale, amounting to HK$12,845,000 (2018:
HKS$13,402,000), have been rented out temporarily. The
Directors have been actively marketing the unsold properties
held for sale and have intention to hold these properties for sale
rather than for rental and/or capital appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17. 50k M W Rk

R Wi B K
B R B R

B M SR K T A R e B o R R
WHR > ZEEHEC 2R -

BE_Z-NESNH=THILFEE
5 R AT R 3K 1 ek (R T A I R B R
B SEEE310H -

1 5% s 4L 458 i 52 )

T 44
S0 o B
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18. 30 il 4> ik ¥ P
B( S e i M B 5k

B 5 HE i iR A
AR ER Y 7E kL]

6 8 ¥ R 18 Bt 5% (&)

BE R -HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

17. LOAN RECEIVABLES

—E - —EF— )\

2019 2018

BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$°000

Loan receivables 1,516 1,582
Less: Allowance for credit losses (1,516) (1,582)

The loan receivables were unsecured and interest-free. The
amounts were all past due at the end of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment of the loan receivables for the

year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in note 31.

Movement in allowance for credit losses

—F— )\4E
2018

BT or
HKS$°000

At the beginning of the year 1,537
Exchange realignment 45
At the end of the year 1,582

18. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Trade and other receivables

FHoAth B W BRI - ££ 3K & TE A K Other receivables, deposits and

B fE B R AR

e S 2 TR\

2019 2018

BT BT T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

Trade receivables 7,655 8,619
Less: Allowance for credit losses 3,161) (3,299)

4,494 5,320

prepayments 26,100 32,771
Less: Allowance for credit losses - (295)

30,594 37,796

A A % 2 A 4 ORI R B R
AT o F 3 U B A% S M WOHR K
A BR A A5 R B > Wi B 4 52 B e

B -

Rental receivables from tenants are payable on presentation of
invoices. The collection is closely monitored to minimise any
credit risk associated with these receivables.
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18.

Al 3 1 ¥E 2 (a0
B{ S e A Mo B 3k (47

M E—NENA=ZTH > HAt ik
R B AS B B 38 B R R B AT Il 4R AT (42
AR R A 42 0 B2 8 A 3K 2 IR U TR K
#:130,0007C (& — /U4 #¥31,000
J6) o LAUE B R F615% (- F — N\
A 6.15%) £ S U AS o A AR ) 2
HEATERZ FHEFEEMAI0H (Z
F—/\4E 1 300) K AFHFAF 2 ¥R
S A30H (F—/\4E 30H) -

W EMRBIAR > DAEETE H O A AR E T 2
51| E Ty I Wi B S 157,655,000 0 (&
— J\4E ¢ #%58,619,000 7T ) 411 %k 15 £ s
18 #3,161,000 78 (- F — /4
3,299,000 70) Z HRES /AT AN T

18.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

At 30 June 2019, the balance of other receivables include
receivables from home buyers who defaulted on repayment to
banks, representing the loans taken over by the Group, of which
HK$30,000 (2018: HK$31,000) are measured at amortised cost
at an effective interest rate of 6.15% (2018: 6.15%) per annum.
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days (2018:
30 days) to the buyers in respect of property sales and 30 days
(2018: 30 days) for tenants.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
HK$7,655,000 (2018: HK$8,619,000) net of allowance for
credit losses of HK$3,161,000 (2018: HK$3,299,000) presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

—RB—NAE e SeVINGD

2019 2018

B F o BT T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

OHZE30HRK 0-30 days 3,155 3,569
31H 260H A 31-60 days 92 200
61 HZ90H A 61-90 days 397 443
90 H L\ & More than 90 days 850 1,108
4,494 5,320

A LE B TR B A % P A0 A S AT
AL N FEA A TBRE &P S AR R
MEFFGEE - FE TG 2 EE
BN E R - R F—JLEANA =
TH > HAp G RERIERZ67% (=%
— J\AE ¢ 61%) 3 IF #8310 s E > I #E
A [ A B AE R AR AN
B RAENE RS -

MR oE—NLFEANH=Z+H > AEHY
5 JRE M Hi 23 6 435 B T (L V5 1,471,000 70
(& — V4 i 2,077,000 0 ) 2 &
W > wZaCERN A HE R A
A H NG R A E SR o B
BTHFERAE RS BE R A
#% K TE T Rl i ] o A 4R NG R KR A
% R AT T R o RS B RIR K
TR A M B100H (—FE— N
Fr92H) o
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Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. As at 30 June 2019, 67% (2018: 61%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired and have the best
credit scoring attributable under the internal credit scoring
system used by the Group.

As at 30 June 2019, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,471,000 (2018: HK$2,077,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
credit loss as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the management considers that the amounts are still
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average overdue age of these receivables is 100
days (2018: 92 days) overdue.
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18, o fib & & 2 (41) 18. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

B 5 B 1 ib ME W MRk () Trade and other receivables (Continued)
208 1 11 o A H 0 A1 2 G B 4 Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
e AN S
2018
HWT T
HKS$°000
i Overdue:
0HZ30H A 0-30 days 326
31HZE60H N 31-60 days 200
61 HZ90H K 61-90 days 443
90 H LA & More than 90 days 1,108
2,077
1 FE M7 1 75 il 52 ) Movement in the allowance for credit losses
—E— N\4E
2018
HWT T
HK$°000
R AEH) At the beginning of the year 3,726
Uik gk Exchange realignment 104
o (L e 15 458 ] Impairment loss reversed (236)
T AE At the end of the year 3,594

1 15 2 B 5 (s & R RE D B > R
EUEY SRR RS E Ny
AH EAR A B BEEE R AL 75
B o I 31D My M TG R R IR B LA AN
TEROME B HEM -

BEFZ-NESNA=ZTHILERE -
T R o Ath 1 iR R0 A5 6 s 1B R A
FEIG AR M RE S 311 o

M_FE—NENA=1TH FFARLE
8 5 0 35 18 7l 2 W9 (E s 1800 B 5 I i
TR R A 3L 45 R L 15 163,299,000 0T © #%
WK A B S IR I LR KR AR
W o A B NG R RE AT S % AR A R 2 AT
AT 48 £1 o

In determining the recoverability of a trade debtor, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade debtor
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. The Directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

Details of credit loss assessment of the trade and other
receivables for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in note
31.

As at 30 June 2018, included in the allowance for doubtful debts
were individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$3,299,000 which were in severe financial
difficulties with long outstanding balances overdue. The Group
did not hold any collateral over those balances.
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18. M Apb4&mhi& & )
I ¥ B JBt 3K R K

% K A e R A~ S B e R i R IR
1"?2%

BE_Z—-NLEANA=1THILEE
I 12 B I TR R A5 K 18 T AL RE
51 A B GRS 31 IH o

BLAT R I A7 K
JECE S R = A B SRAT R A R

1.65%%23.00%( — & — )N 4F : 142% %
1.75%) 2 i 4F B R EHH -

BE % Tbﬂf/\ﬂ—‘i‘EIJJ:ﬂfJE>
SRAT E W A7 3R A B s 18 AT Al R I
ﬁﬂﬁfMin£§€3lIE °
WATEE B K Bl 4

SRATEERE LB S AR EEH A Z B
ﬁ&ﬁ?iﬂﬁ,ﬁﬁ*@ﬁd‘céﬁézﬁlﬂ
B AN BR ) #5 2 SRAT A7 3K o $RAT &5 iR %
mm@mw4£~A$:wm£
0.30%) 2 T &5 4F B R FHA -

BE_ZE—-NEANA=Z1THILEFEE
SRAT &5 KB & E B IR FEAG RE
H 51 A B SR AR 310 o

19. S5 B I fib HE A M 5k

MRoE—NEASNA=Z+H -5 RE
Ath R AF HE R &5 B B 355 5 #5°914,000 7€ (—
%—/\E i H5767,00070) 2 E 5 HEAT
R - R EWMBI K > DI H AR
HE i 2 1]
‘F

{ oy W& A5t B K 2 B 23 A

18.

19.

0H %60 H i 0-60 days
61 HZ90H KN 61-90 days
90 H L\ & Over 90 days

H Aty Wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂaz%@%auﬂﬂﬁ?’
4 3k TE HE #12,172,000 0T ( = F — /A
i %%1517000075 ?Etlﬂz%klﬁ
W #5991,000 o0 ( . FE — U i
55,390,000 JC ) &ﬁﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁﬁ e
15,820,000 JC ( — & — 4 i B
6,308,0007T) ©
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Details of credit loss assessment of the amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set
out in note 31.

Fixed bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
months carry interest at market rates ranging from 1.65% to
3.00% (2018: 1.42% to 1.75%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the fixed bank deposits for
the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in note 31.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
deposits with banks which are not restricted in use with the
original maturity of three months or less. Bank balances carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.13% to 0.30% (2018:
0.01% to 0.30%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the bank balances and cash
for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in note 31.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 30 June 2019, the balance of trade and other payables
included trade payables of HK$914,000 (2018: HK$767,000).
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

N — J\4F
2019 2018

#W T T ou
HK$°000 HKS$'000
868 333

- 21

46 413

914 767

The other payables mainly include rental deposits received of
HK$12,172,000 (2018: HK$15,170,000), receipt in advance of
HKS$5,991,000 (2018: HK$5,390,000) and other tax payable of
HK$5,820,000 (2018: HK$6,308,000).
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20. BANK LOANS

W A 21.

annum.

SHARE CAPITAL

A J s #1.00 70 2 3% 78 B 4y
BE
R_F—LELtH—H-
ZEZ-NEANAZTHE

ZZ - R#EAH=Z+H
ELEAT KA
)JL/\\~< t&E+tH—H

A0 B Bt 2 B0 B AT (Wt

W oFE—NEANH=1TH
AT FR R 2 By 34T (B )

REZ—EAAZ1H

JBe £ ¥ H

Number of shares

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each

—®—JUAE e SVINC2
2019 2018
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
A HCH SR 1T B K Secured bank loans 107,759 135,520
I A 252 B I {1 Carrying amount repayable
(AR 97 5 3 b o T A (based on the scheduled repayment
THEMEEAY) dates set out in the loan agreements):
— 4R Within one year 107,759 7,761
— AR AR (A AN A AR More than one year but not exceeding
two years - 127,759
107,759 135,520
W BIAE B A R ZE R Less: Amounts due within one year
— 4 K E 7R 3E shown under current liabilities (107,759) (7,761)
B AE FF I B & Ak IE Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities - 127,759
SRAT B K AL ﬁ/\ W L /ﬁ; G ) 2k The bank loans are secured by the investment properties situated
;i #r T AT A R AFHEAT o SRAT &R LA in Shanghai, the PRC and certain bank deposits. The bank loans
WA - are denominated in HKS$.
ATl E 7% 77%? v SRAT [F] 2E 47 B ( The loans carried interest at variable rate of 1.45% (2018: 1.45%)
% # E over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) per

Lk

Amount

BT T
HK$°000

Authorised:

At 1 July 2017, 30 June 2018 and

30 June 2019

300,000,000 300,000

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 July 2017 225,066,181 225,066
Issue of shares upon exercise of

share options (Note) 107,500 108
At 30 June 2018 225,173,681 225,174
Issue of shares upon exercise of

share options (Note) 3,150,000 3,150
At 30 June 2019 228,323,681 228,324
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21. AN (4) 21. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

116

Mt - BEF—NFEANA=ZFTHILEERN > &
45 ) s TR B HE AT A IR % 17 3,150,000 % % 8
JB (=2 — \4F : 107,500 8% 32 48 %) 45 B
W10 2 W o R HE AT 08 R AR 4
JE TR A B W13 T (S — AR B
W 113 70) o A T AT BE AT 2 0 ik
B IRy B A A A 45 7 T 55 AT [ 4 R 42 o

22. WEHLBLIE A

PATT i A 4R B2 T 4 A ik o5 30 ] A 42 1
TR 2 - B ST B IA B A A B A )

22.

Note: During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company issued 3,150,000
ordinary shares (2018: 107,500 ordinary shares) of HK$1 each upon
exercise of share options. The exercise price of the share options during
the year was HK$1.13 per share (2018: HK$1.13 per share). The new
ordinary shares issued in both years rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting
periods are as follows:

we B ) 4+
A 23 B A
Undistributed
earnings of
PRC Investment
subsidiary
T T
HKS$’000

BYWE

Total
BT T
HKS$°000

properties
BT
HKS$°000

WoZ—tHELH—H  Atluly2017 2,493 300,132 302,625
5, 4 o Exchange realignment 73 8,680 8,753
TE48 55 N 1 BR Charge to profit or loss 88 11,128 11,216
AT — \AENHZ=1TH At30 June 2018 2,654 319,940 322,594
Sh 0 i B Exchange realignment (111) (13,138) (13,249)
TEHH 5 NN ER (FEA) Charge (credit) to profit or loss 91 (15,641) (15,550)
R —NEAAZ+H At30 June 2019 2,634 291,161 293,795

MNoE—NESNH=Z1TH > AEHT
P B K 5 2 2l s A 1 oA (55 B 1E S 4R
7 5 1191,834,000 76 ( & — \4F 1 i
#173,135,000 70) = [ K BE #E E A& 2R i
F L > W R AT T R E T Bl TE G o 3%
ol T e 98 ] 4 PR &5 e o

MoE—NESNA=1TH > AE@EE
RS- /E AR N & o PR
4,424,000 76 (#H %5 it A R 83,892,000 70)
(=& — N4 5 015,410,000 76 ) (A1
5 N R 812,992,000 T) © F A AT B
FI U6k 1T R 2 E 2 m] (MR BB i A R
HE Tl G A7 E > MR 0 208 2 B TE K A AR
% 1] 09T IR 2 AR R -
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At 30 June 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$191,834,000 (2018: HK$173,135,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2019, the Group has deductible temporary difference
in relation to investment properties of HK$4,424,000 (equivalent
to RMB3,892,000) (2018: HK$15,410,000 (equivalent to
RMB12,992,000)). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised.
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9l 4% ) o s 2k £ 2 B IR
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23.

W_F b At 1 July 2017
tH—H

&R ER1T K IA  Repayment of bank loans

7 SRA ﬁ B FFKIH  New bank loan raised

24t FLE Interest paid

AT A E\ Dividends paid
(MfFE#11H) (note 11)

FE 2 A Interest expense

I B4 52 ) Non-cash changes

S 46 i Exchange realignment

REF— /N At 30 June 2018
ANH=1H

B3R R 1T EF KA Repayment of bank loans

CAT A Interest paid

AT IR Dividends paid
(Mt 5511 ) (note 11)

FLE 2 Interest expense

ES vy )] Non-cash changes

S, 4 T R Exchange realignment

H=F—JUsE At 30 June 2019
AA=Z1H

&6 91 5 BR 18 Bt 5% (=)
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

HEAT ) 8
(M 5% e
JC 4 HE A
k)
Interest
payable
(included in
Bank other Dividend
loans payables) payable Total
# T T # T T T T H T T
HK$°000 HK3$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(143,290) (82) = (143,372)
11,770 = = 11,770
(4,000) — - (4,000)
— 3,077 — 3,077
= = 12,381 12,381
- (3,115) - (3,115)
— — (12,381) (12,381)
- (12) - (12)
(135,520) (132) — (135,652)
27,761 — — 27,761
= 4,081 = 4,081
= - 15,983 15,983
— (4,086) — (4,086)
= = (15,983) (15,983)
= 9 = 9
(107,759) (128) - (107,887)

s JBe it 3 e DA JBe By 2 HE i 2
ik

ANFAR -EE—F+_H_+—H
B0 50 B HE 5T # (72001 48 %3 1)

W oE——F+ T HIH AR A BHR
AR & b I R A — TE A
ok 2 o b HE B AN ET RR B RE R #) (T 2011
$ﬂﬂl’uﬁ%%m¥$#*$+
= ARSI =2 R A o
+ = A JUH A& 1E2001 4F 5 #] o B 4
mm@%%&mn@%%mbfﬁé
F R KA EKS AR -

24.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme on 21
December 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”). On 9 December 2011,
an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company approving the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme’’) which will
expire on 8 December 2021 and the simultaneous termination of
the 2001 Scheme with effect from 9 December 2011. Both the
2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme were adopted for the purpose
of providing incentives to Directors, employees and eligible
participants.
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24.

W JBe M il 3 B DA JBe iy 2 2%
ﬁmk(fsg

/' o

R 42001 45 51 8] K 2011 45 51 &) > AR
I 5 % e W NN e A o /N I
H B KA ERSHE (HARH
$“7%$@MM%E 5% 7 ] 58 B
AN A (TR ) 2 3R HE (1 w8 Bt
BE 1) o B RO 0 R I AE A R D A DL R
= 2w Q) R T A B R
MEHH (AR EEH) EHCH H kR
BT 51 2 Wi T A 5 (i) B 00 i B4 % T M
S = G o =
H R o 2 P88 5 K i) B 4y
T °

m%mhﬁﬁﬁT&%Tw T 7

A7 10 58 JE A T 43 B B e 22 8 AR WD
H@ﬁﬁnﬁﬁﬁ%mazaﬁﬁ%
310% o R 52011 4F 51 # > 5% 10%4
521,910,368 B 13 T4 4k A 48\ i A 4R
HH BB AT M £910% o fid 7% AT fH
GEHYEH  EERNGEKBZHER
AT AT = A8 7 Al 58 A A
R H R T BB ST AR 1% > i B
W35 A A AT R T AR RE o AT
2T 58 B HE M) B AR /N ] 3 5 &
HIR > A EMEAR T2 HEST
Moo TR ZH BN TH R T E S E
WML o F R B RE Al A R H i
+NH REMR o

B EFz—JLFENH =T H > #2001
A EFE 2011 F FHE BB KoM R
7 A 32 1B HE AH B R 0 B E o R B
10,180,000 ( — 2 — JU4FE © 14,330,000) %
3 51,000,000 ( — & — /\4E 1 1,000,000)
B £y > AH SF i A2 W] Ik HE2001 4F F

B K201 1 4E 78 H 2 B 384T A 4.7%
(=& — )V 1 6.6%) 20.5%(—F— )\
1 0.5%)
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Under both the 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant share options (“Options”)
to Directors, employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
and such eligible participants at the discretion of the Board
of Directors of the Company pursuant to the terms thereof, to
subscribe for shares of the Company (“Shares”), at a price per
Share not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average of the closing price of a Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant

Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option
schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of the adoption of the
relevant share option scheme. Under the 2011 Scheme, such
10% represents 21,910,368 shares, which continue to represent
about 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report. No Director, employee or eligible
participant may exercise option(s) granted to him or her under
the share option scheme if such exercise would result in him or
her subscribing for more than 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of such new grant in any 12-month
period. The option period for which the options granted are
exercisable, shall be such period as notified by the Board of
Directors of the Company, save that it shall not be more than ten
years from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is payable by the grantee on acceptance of each grant. The offer
of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of the offer.

As at 30 June 2019, the number of Shares in respect of which
Options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2001 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme were 10,180,000 (2018:
14,330,000) Shares and 1,000,000 (2018: 1,000,000) Shares
respectively, representing 4.7% (2018: 6.6%) and 0.5% (2018:
0.5%) of the Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme.
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24. BIBHESES Ry B> 24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

kK 4 BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
PR RS R The following tables disclose details of the Options:
BEZZNEANA=ZTHIEERE Year ended 30 June 2019
AREYA
Number of Options
it it
“g-\f ‘ “R-n
o LA-HREENORERR REED RERR AT
ghnm BRGER Wi WAL g TEAR fitk XM WAL
Exercise Outstanding Granted  Reclassified Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
price at during during during during at
Date of grant per Share  Exercisable period 1 July 2018 the year the year* the year theyear 30 June 2019
#H
HKS
20014t M
2001 Scheme
5.
Ditectors:
“F-—F+AZtAA 13 ZF-—F+A-tEHE
“E-AETAZTEA
25 October 2011 113 25 October 2011 to 8,150,000 - 4,380,000 (3,150,000 (1,000,000) 8,380,000
24 October 2019
il :
Others:
ZF-—FtAZTAA 13 ZF-—FtAZFAAE
“E-NEHAZTEA
25 Qctober 2011 113 25 October 2011 to 6,180,000 - (4380,000) - - 1,800,000
24 October 2019
14,330,000 - - (3,150,000 (1,000,000 10,180,000
*REE-NEZANARBAGRRAESRENE -
* Reclassified upon individuals becoming directors on 4 March 2019.
JA4F R 7 17
Exercisable at the end of the year 10,180,000
IEFA R (EH)
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 113 - - L13 - L13
20114t
2011 Scheme
g%
Ditectors:
“Z-LEt-RTH 305 ZF-RE+-AtHE
“E-NETRZAIA
10 November 2015 3.05 10 November 2015 to
24 October 2019 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
RERBT T
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,000,000
IEF A G ()
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 3.05 - - - - 3.05
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24. BIHES S Ry B> 24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

1§ 3% (45) BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
BWEZZ— NFEANH =T HIEFEE Year ended 30 June 2018
ARESH
Number of Options

R R
“E -t ZF— N\
. . . AR REEm OREER  REER AAZHA
Rl B BRATEE A AT 08 % frff KR AT
Exercise Qutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
price at during during during at

Date of grant per Share  Exercisable period 1 July 2017 the year the year the year 30 June 2018

b
HKS

2001483t H

2001 Scheme

#H:

Directors:

“F-—#+HZtEA L3 ZF——F+A-+HHE

g I

25 Qctober 2011 113 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 8,150,000 - - - 8,150,000

Al

Others:

“F-—#+AZtEA L3 ZF——F+H-+HHE

A
25 October 2011 11325 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 6,287,500 - (107,500) - 6,180,000
14,437,500 - (107,500) - 14330000

TG R R AT

Exercisable at the end of the year 14,330,000

T ()

Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 113 - 113 - 1.13

2011458

2011 Scheme

£

Directors:

“Z-fEt-AtH 305 ZF-Aft-ATHE

“F-NETAZtRA

10 November 2015 3.05 10 November 2015 to 24 October 2019 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000

JAAE A AT

Exercisable at the end of the year 1,000,000

T ()

Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 3.05 = = - 3.05
PEE_F—UEANH ZTHIEFE Options exercised during the year ended 30 June 2019 resulted
A A7 {8 EE % RE A 85 173,150,000 ( in 3,150,000 (2018: 107,500) Shares being issued. The related
F — V4 1 107,500) By o A By weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before
TE B TR HEAT (6 H B 2 w6 i T the dates on which the Options were exercised was HK$7.52
i 8 A R 75200 (ZF— A (2018: HK$7.89) per Share.

4 HH7.8970) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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0.9307C °

k4% 2% & Ah > 422001 4F 5t #1) &% 2011 4F
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HE o
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24.

25S.

26.

ORI M T (&)

BE R -HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

For the Options granted on 25 October 2011 and 10 November
2015, the fair value of each Option determined as at the date of
grant using the binomial option pricing model was HK$0.375
and HK$0.930 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, no other option was granted under the
2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme since their adoption.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the settlement
of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a
property project in Beijing, the PRC. At 30 June 2019, the
Group had given guarantees in respect of such home loans of
HK$1,032,000 (2018: HK$1,859,000). The Directors consider
that the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts at their
initial recognition and at the end of the reporting period are
insignificant on the basis of the low loan to value ratio.

Details of the credit loss allowance for the given guarantees are
set out in note 31.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases in respect of rented premises for offices as follows:

- 2 I = — )\

2019 2018

BT BT r

HK$’000 HKS$°000

=N Within one year 2,752 2,874
TR B AR In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,146 4,107
3,898 6,981

L ok -39 2 A 4 (% — 4
(R0 SR 1 i = ot W Il = N G
FE M e

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years (2018:
two years) and rentals are fixed over the term of the leases.
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26. RLEA&YE 4
A ALY

BSR4 i FT R I HE T AR 48 Ak
I3 2R R 2 A B AL IR A T
AR e e =8 e #
BEOE-JENHZ=ZTHIEER -
JiT Bl B 2 B AR A 4 WA 2 s 5,346,000
J6 (& — N 5 756,864,0000C) ©

RERMR . UTEEZLEHEMR
i

26.

LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)
The Group as lessor:

Contingent rental income was calculated based on the excess of
certain percentage of revenue of the relevant operation of the
lessees who occupied certain of the properties over the fixed
portion of the monthly rentals. Contingent rental income earned
during the year ended 30 June 2019 is HK$5,346,000 (2018:
HK$6,864,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were

rented out under operating leases:

RN —E— )\ F

2019 2018

T W or

HKS$°000 HKS$°000

i@ L/ES Investment properties 1,651,738 1,884,888
ey Properties held for sale 12,845 13,402

ZEBEVFHHENL =4 (2F—
AR 2R TRAEE A R AE o
MAHF WA BB WA (ZF— /W
) -

B R IR - A 4R B SR AR AT A
18 B A AR T S Wi o K AL B K

These assets were leased out for average term of three years
(2018: three years) with renewal options given to the lessees for
further periods not exceeding two years (2018: two years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

THAREI T - under non-cancellable operating leases:
e S 2 RN\
2019 2018
BT o BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
A —4E R Within one year 78,762 81,440
R 2R HER In the second to fifth year inclusive 72,564 59,893
AR E Over five years 5,701 8,240
157,027 149,573
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(a)

(b)

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying Directors and
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Defined
Contribution Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Where there are Directors and employees who
leave the Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the amount of the forfeited
contributions will be used to reduce future contributions
payable by the Group.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set up
a MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution
Scheme were given one-time option to choose to transfer
to the MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
rates specified in the rules. No forfeited contributions are
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years by the employer.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the schemes.

There are no forfeited contributions in both years
which arose upon employees leaving the Defined
Contribution Scheme and which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group under the Defined
Contribution Scheme in the future years.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiary and joint venture are required to
contribute 20% and 9% of the stipulated salary set by the
Beijing and Shenzhen local governments, respectively,
to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefits scheme contributions
recognised in profit or loss are HK$747,000 (2018:
HK$769,000).
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28.

29.
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28.

29.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

In addition to the guarantees given by the Group for home loans
provided by banks to certain buyers as disclosed in note 25,
the Group has also pledged its bank deposits of HK$2,849,000
(2018: HK$2,966,000) to banks to secure such home loans
granted to the home buyers. The deposits carry floating interest
rate of 0.30% (2018: 0.30%) per annum on average and will
be released upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate and the relevant property pledged to the
bank; and (ii) the full repayment of mortgage loan by the home
buyers.

At 30 June 2019, the Group had pledged its investment
properties situated in Shanghai, the PRC, with a carrying
amount of HK$918,536,000 (2018: HK$950,065,000), certain
bank balances and bank deposits of HK$10,216,000 (2018:
HK$27,555,000), an assignment of rental and sale proceeds
from the investment properties and a charge over share in
respect of the Group’s 100% equity interest in Move On
International Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, to the bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group. The pledged bank deposits carry interest
rate of 4.53% (2018: 4.16%) per annum.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group has entered into

the following transactions with related companies:

% —E—N\F

2019 2018

BT W T

HKS$°000 HK3$°000

BN Rental income received 324 =
% i L A e A Other income received 450 458
BT AR 4 K H Rental and management fees paid 4,416 3,849
L AT i I R 5 2 Consultancy service fees paid 2,200 1,000
[BENRALE Agency fees paid 727 331
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29.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other outstanding balances with the following related
companies, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand at 30 June 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

SRR #A R
e SR 2 —E— )\4E
2019 2018
BT T T
HKS$°000 HK3$°000
AR Ath JE W BR K Z Deposits due from related companies
Pl ) NI R N included in other receivables 515 515
AN A R AR B 2 Amounts due from related companies
A BN F Rk included in other receivables 2,548 1,541
RN Ath JE A BR K 2 Amount due to a related company
KA BRI 7 3kE included in other payables 1,847 1,095
T 1B B R R K Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder 301 907

A7 BRI 26 ) T3 A 2 R F
fy 45 7 -

ALEBMERERANERTAESR > K
S5 N RE T TE T RE SS9 () JH A B 5% -

YA, B A B

o S I 2 7 6 B T O 07 B
25 465 0 A ot BT A > LA £ 9
B B T AR o O T M O
1 o A S e O L 4
RS -

AL ] 2 A SR R TR (R TR
B 55 20 JH 1 % 5% 19 SR AT M5 BE) - i
B&RB &S EEAR A A AELN
R (ELTE O 384T A ~ IR B o A1) S B
b fefi ) B ALK

I E B B AL o 1R 2y AR B
Tz~ HEEFEMFEREHE
A 25 R R o IRIEREE A
ERE R EA A KA EARA M
B JE By o Sl A A R B S B AT BT R
17 LA R 5% 47 58 10085 S5O 1| B A (R
DA 7 HL R A A

30.

The related companies are companies controlled by certain
Directors.

The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors,
details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 9(a).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans as disclosed in note 20, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the Directors review annual budgets taking
into account the provision of funding. Based on the operating
budgets, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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3. @I H 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(W) &l T H KON (a) Categories of financial instruments

e S - 3 RN
2019 2018

W F T
HKS$°000

#W T
HK$°000

126

B BHERRRK > B
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KIA > BATAF K > MATHG B LB
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BHRMEBRMHEERE - 4%
Sl T B 2 G I 48 0 AR R BA R
Ao BLEZ S 4 B AR B A R R
B3 T 5 L B (B L g A A
BB~ i B R B AN B R R
B o T T A T A B AT e a%
5 JEl B B BUSRE o A 4R IR B R
B Qe B AL A A B > DA R 2 Ry
A Rl AR IO i

oA ] 2 325 5L o 5
S 7 AL L 7 3% B € 4 i O 4
1) -

SE-NEZEF-NFEEER | EZOEEARA A

4 Rl Financial assets
DA B AR 5T 1) 4l & %= Financial assets at amortised cost 498,303 =
D)4 85 A w0 2 SR B Loans and receivables at

JRE WS B A (4 B 4 I amortised cost (including cash

Ba%HE) and cash equivalents) - 531,815
4 ik £ 4 Financial liabilities
085 LA Amortised cost 140,857 169,743

(&) % b ol B 4% B H B2 B o (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
AL EE2MLEGRES The Group’s major financial instruments include amount

due from a joint venture, loan receivables, trade and
other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, bank loans and long-term rental
deposits received. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks from the prior year.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

@

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group
regularly monitors the Group’s foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (mainly include bank loans) at
the reporting date are as follows:

R AR TFE— )\
2019 2018
BT BT r
HKS$’000 HK$’000
<A Assets

T HK$ 3,109 1,743
Fa& ([%4]) United States dollars (“US$”) 9,524 9,382
By ([Hem%)) Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 1,852 1,215

15 Liabilities
s e HKS$ 110,614 137,471
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3. &I ) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) 4l s 45 20 H OBE B W3R (7)) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
i 5 B () Market risk (Continued)
i) B (A (i) Currency risk (Continued)
PR o BT Sensitivity analysis

—F - N\NE

N FEEES AR T B The following table details the Group’s sensitivity

I R B 85 T {H 3% R I 5% (— to a 5% (2018: 5%) rate increase or decrease in
F—/)\E 0 5%) HALERZ RMB against HK$, US$ and GBP. 5% (2018:
HURPE o 5% (= F — )\ 4F ¢ 5%) is the sensitivity rate used which represents
5% ) J2 BT A A SO R management’s assessment of the reasonably

£ T ) A RE BE 2R 5 ] possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
RESEE) 2 FTAL o BURBE T sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
1 B35 1 R R 2 AN foreign currencies denominated monetary items
Bz BWIHHE - I fE 25
5% (T — N4 1 5%) #

and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2018: 5%) change in

R B K 2 AR foreign currency rates. A positive number below
o NI AIE SR A indicates an increase in pre-tax profit for the year
M 5L AT B A0 1Y) B R T where RMB strengthen 5% (2018: 5%) against

5% (& — N4 1 5%) 5 5% the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2018: 5%)
4 JE B Bl 1 Ui A2 e i A

weakening of RMB against the relevant currencies,

B 50 B A0 B2 (5% (— there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
F— J\AE 1 5%) > HIl % ¥ A pre-tax profit for the year and the balances below
AF FE 1 B T i A A RS AR 2 would be negative.
AR SR B TR B &5 BRI 2
=F QU
2
Effect on profit or loss
—E A TE )\
2019 2018
W T T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
s HKS$ (5,375) (6,786)
xE Us$ 476 469
e GBP 93 61

EIER L BURE ST A In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
FER AR SN s unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
AT IR JEL gt SIS B AR R 4F A

JE B exposure during the relevant years.

risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the

—UEEER | EOEEARA A
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk primarily in relation to variable-rate bank
deposits and bank balances (see note 18 for
details) amounting to HK$273,453,000 (2018:
HK$288,265,000), variable-rate bank loans (see
note 20 for details) amounting to HK$107,759,000
(2018: HK$135,520,000), respectively. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on
bank balances and HIBOR arising from the Group’s
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings. The
interest rate risk of bank deposits and bank balances
are considered insignificant as the bank deposits
are substantially short-term deposits and fluctuation
in interest rate of bank balances is limited. The
variable-rate bank loans with original maturity
instalments range from one year to three years. An
increase in interest rates would increase interest
expenses. The Group currently does not have
interest rate hedging policy, however, management
monitors interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments, excluding
bank deposits and bank balances, at the end of
the reporting period. For variable-rate bank loans,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points (2018: 100 basis points)
increase or a 25 basis points (2018: 25 basis points)
decrease is used as it represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2018:
100 basis points) higher or 25 basis points (2018:
25 basis points) lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
30 June 2019 would decrease by HK$1,078,000
(2018: HK$1,355,000) or increase by HK$269,000
(2018: HK$339,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s net exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings.
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31.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by the

Group is arising from:

. the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantees issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 25.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder, amount due from
a joint venture, fixed bank deposits, bank balances, loan
receivables, trade and other receivables and financial
guarantee contracts.

Trade and other receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit impaired, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items by using a provision matrix, grouped by ageing
analysis.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is in the PRC. Other than concentration of credit
risk on liquid funds and by geographical location, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, spreading across diverse counterparties.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, no allowance of
credit losses on trade receivables is provided based on the
ECL assessment as the amount is considered insignificant.

Loan receivables

For loan receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL. At 30 June 2019, the Group
provided HK$1,516,000 impairment allowance for loan
receivables, in the view of the low recoverability of the
borrowers.

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder/amount
due from a joint venture

For amounts due from a joint venture and a non-
controlling shareholder, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL. The Group applies internal
credit risk management to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The credit risk
on these balances is limited having considered the credit
quality of the counterparties and the probability of default
is negligible. Therefore, no allowance of credit losses is
made on these balances.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risks on Group’s pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits and bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or state-owned

banks in the PRC.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, no allowance of
credit losses on fixed bank deposits and bank balances is
provided based on the ECL assessment as the amount is

considered insignificant.

Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount the Group has

guaranteed under the respective contracts.

The Group has provided guarantees to banks in connection
with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up
to 70% of the purchase price of the individual property.
If a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
loan during the period of guarantee, the bank holding the
mortgage may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to resell the repossessed
properties. Therefore, management considers it would
recover any loss incurred arising from the guarantee to the

customers.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, no allowance of
credit losses on financial guarantee contracts is provided
based on the ECL assessment as the amount is considered

insignificant.

Based on the ECL assessment, the credit exposures for all
the financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment,
are considered as low risk because the counterparties have
a low risk of default and does not have material past-due

amounts.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

W St

Internal credit rating

(&R

Low risk

ER4E

Watch list

fig

Doubtful

B

Loss

i

Write-off

ik

Description

R FMRA R - LA T8 508

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does
not have any past-due amounts

s AR R A 2R
HER AR A RSE

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually
settle after due date

R EEVES A TV S
R ERBRE K

There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

FRERNEECREGERE

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

RREREH AT KRB B3 R
AR B R T

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

B M TR oAb A ¥ i kA H

Trade receivables Other financial assets and other item

2 HENE SRR RAAEREEER
f5 e

Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
not credit-impaired

2 BB SRR RAAERERER
W5 W

Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
not credit-impaired

2B SRR - A MEG REE-
AR R EHHE

Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

2B SRR - AMEGREE-
fR B R EH{E

Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired

i e

Amount is written off Amount is written off
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment:

I 124 H 82 B0

REES 45 flE M v AR

Internal Gross

credit carrying

rating 12m or ECL Lifetime amount
BT
HKS$°000

—Z AR
2019
JU B G AT B0 E E
Financial assets at amortised cost
BEMZERK 15 ANEA AR 1218 F (5 Sk 1R
Amount due from 15 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 215,712
a joint venture
B REISR K 17 AER i %ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ;ﬁg BlEtE—
=80
Loan receivables 17 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,516
B 5 eI 18 AN AR %Hﬁ?%ﬁ;% {,’gféﬂﬁ -
n =%
Trade receivables 18 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired 3,359
BARAE ARG R —
I A5 R YR
Watch list  Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired 446
T 2R G Bk —
A Bl
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — not credit-
) impaired 689
18 £ i%ﬁ;ﬁf 5 R —
GRS SCALEN
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 3,161
7,655
HoAt RE AR K 18 AEH RER 12418 H (5 S8
Other receivables 18 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 4,217
FEFE IR BOR R K 18 AEH RER 12418 A (G SR
Amount due from a non- 18 N/A Low risk 12m ECL
controlling shareholder 301
SRATAF N AR THEBE 18528 Baa3FA2 A 1248 H BA(E S8
Bank deposits and bank 18 and Baa3 to A2 N/A 12m ECL
balances 28 273,453
HAbEH
Other item o
W G 4 25 ANEA AR 1218 H #3 (5 SR
Financial guarantee 25 N/A Lowrisk  12m ECL
contracts 1,032
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group provided HK$3,161,000
and HKS$1,516,000 allowance of credit losses on trade
receivables and loan receivables, respectively. Trade
receivables of HK$3,161,000 and loan receivables of
HK$1,516,000 are considered to be credit-impaired as at
30 June 2019.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables under
simplified approach.

239 B0
£ 2 0
(f5 B W)
Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)
BT T
HKS$°000

At 1 July 2018 -
Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 July 2018:

— Impairment loss recognised 3,299
Exchange adjustments (138)
At 30 June 2019 3,161

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

The following table shows the movement in 12m ECL
that has been recognised for other receivables under
simplified approach.

1248 H # W
1% £ k5 1
12m ECL

BT o
HK$°000

At 1 July 2018 -
Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 July 2018:

— Impairment loss recognised 295
Written-off (283)
Exchange adjustments (12)
At 30 June 2019 -
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for the loan receivables.

23w
B i
(5 BE AR
Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)
H T T
HK$°000

At 1 July 2018 -
Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 July 2018:

— Impairment loss recognised 1,532
Exchange adjustments (16)
At 30 June 2019 1,516

The impairment loss of HK$1,516,000 recognised on the
loan receivables is related to the loan receivables with
gross carrying amount of HK$1,516,000.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest period on which the Group can be required to

pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from the weighted
average interest rate by reference to the HIBOR of the
Group’s variable-rate financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 30 June 2018 and 2019, the Group does not have
term loan with repayment on demand clause. The maturity
dates for bank loans and other non-derivative financial
liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.
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3. BT H (%) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(&) 4xih ) b 45 BE H B B BUOR (A7) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Vb A Liquidity risk (Continued)
it By B Liquidity risk tables

i#

R0

il IRV -8 =M —i ANBBE AR=TR
AR Si-MA ZRN B EEE BENE  WEAR  mRE
Weighted  On demand Total  Carrying

average  or less than 13 3months 1-2 OverS undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 month months  to 1 year years years years  cash flows 30 June 2019
#rr T T BT BT BT BT TR

HK$'000  HKS$’000  HKS$000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$’000  HKS$000

“E0E

2019

B R LA R 5t

Trade and other payables - 7807 1,993 8,123 - - - 17923 17923

AT FE A

Bank loans - variable rate * 398 358 2,110 108,754 - - - 111,822 107,759

R EES

Long-term rental deposits - - - - 10,795 4,209 1M 15,175 15,175
8,165 4,703 116,877 10,795 4,209 ! 144,920 140,857

W ERAY

Financial guarantee contracts - 1,032 - - - - - 1,032 -

i

—Z— )\

il B A — AMBBE AH=1H
TR HR-MHA —F  EWF RENE  WEBHE  MREHE
Weighted  On demand Total  Carrying

average  or less than 3 3months 1-2 2-5 Over 5 undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate 1 month months  to | year years years years  cash flows 30 June 2018
% ENTT  EETT  BETT ERTT BETT BETT BT BT

%  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$S'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

“E0\E
2018
B0 R ABRERTHRRR
Trade and other payables - 7,242 2,066 10,600 - - - 19,908 19,908
BT R B R
Bank loans - variable rate * 3.46 392 2,779 9410 131,958 - - 144,539 135,520
R ERe
Long-term rental deposits - - - - 10,963 3,087 265 14315 14315
7,634 4,845 20,010 142,921 3,087 265 178,762 169,743
B RAH
Financial guarantee
contracts - 1,859 - - - - - 1,859 -
* A BB RN S I * For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, weighted average
By AR 2 0 HE ST 2 1 TR S 4 S0 interest rate represents the weighted average of HIBOR plus 1.45%
F145% (= F— \4F ¢ [7 2 4% B (2018: HIBOR plus 1.45%).
F1.45%) -
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(©

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their
corresponding fair values.
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

2N F] i B R IR I R A Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the

B &
B M e 2
E R S Y& el
WY JB 2>\ Bk

JFC At B o R T % LA K
SRAT & B KBl

B B AR
At 1B AT AR K

B A E
AR WO B B
B T At

A

Tt (M7t )

HHE i

Ik i B £ AT
R 2 ) R

reporting period:

s —EN\F
2019 2018

#W T T oo
HKS$’000 HK$'000

Non-current Assets

Investments in subsidiaries 535,433 385,680
Property, plant and equipment 8 8
Loans to subsidiaries 619,496 755,079
1,154,937 1,140,767
Current Assets
Other receivables and prepayments 179 166
Bank balances and cash 1,319 1,855
1,498 2,021
Current Liability
Other payables 4,099 4,244
Net Current Liabilities (2,601) (2,223)
Total Assets less Current Liability 1,152,336 1,138,544

Capital and Reserves

Share capital 228,324 225,174
Reserves (Note) 661,258 671,763
Total Equity 889,582 896,937

Non-current Liability
Amounts due to subsidiaries 262,754 241,607

1,152,336 1,138,544
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32. ARAFAWMBRIE ) 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

et - bt Note: reserves

AR VB IR

Jhe B 1 Pl MG B RERA
Capital Share

Share  redemption  Translation option Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve profits
BBTFT  EETT BFTT BETT ABTT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000

BoFZ—tELH—H  AtlJuly2017 429,619 1,644 128,655 6,343 83,786 650,047
R A Profit for the year - - - - 7572 7572
EWELZHAEERE  Exchange differences arising

on translation - - 26,511 - - 26,511

FERTBASH Total comprehensive income

for the year - - 26,511 - 7,572 34,083
TR 2 b 8847 Issue of shares upon exercise

of share options 54 - - (40) - 14
B Mzt #11) Dividends (note /1) = = = = (12,381) (12,381)
REF=AEAAZTH At30June 2018 429,673 1,644 155,166 6,303 78977 671,763
A A Profit for the year = = = - 42,326 4,326
ERELZHBEEE  Exchange differences arising

on translation - - (37,258) - - (37,258)

AT () YA 4% Total comprehensive

(expense) income for the

year - - (37,258) - 42326 5,068
TTHRREHE 2 L (R 8817 Issue of shares upon exercise

of share options 1,591 - - (1,181) - 410
R Lapse of share options = = = (375) 375 =
W8 (M F11E) Dividends (note /1) = = = = (15,983) (15,983)
RZF-RAEAA=ZFH At30 June 2019 431,264 1,644 117,908 4,747 105,695 661,258

140 —Z—AZE-Z—NEEER | BAEBARA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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BE R -HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

33. BER)EA A G

WoE-NERFE - NERNA =T

o> FEMBAFAZFERWT

Wk /it

WEATAR BRE

Place of incorporation/
registration/operation

Name of subsidiary

TERAEEAR A #ik
Ardent Enterprises Limited Hong Kong
JU IR e B T (it~
ARAH
Beijing Longfast Property PRC (Note )
Development Co., Ltd.
FRBEARAR #ik
Billion Stock Investment Limited Hong Kong
EBEANE
Broad Capital Investments British Virgin Islands
Limited
EERARAR Fik
China Gain Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong
ENHRAR EEEANE
Dynamic (B.V.L.) Limited British Virgin Islands
L VOR
Dynamic Finance Limited Hong Kong
BHER (LR ARAA  ERELRE
Dynamic Management (Beijing)  British Virgin Islands
Limited
BHERRHARAA  KE
Dynamic Management Services  Hong Kong
Limited
Fik
Dynamic (Nominees) Limited ~ Hong Kong
BARNE (PR #M  RERAHE
EHARAR
Dynamic Real Estate (China) ~ British Virgin Islands
Management Consultancy
Limited
EBEANE
Glory Diamond Inc. British Virgin Islands
BB ERRAR #ik
Harvic Investment Limited Hong Kong

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

are as follows:

KA
. BRI /it
CHARERBA /A AT R
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered
capital held by
Issued and paid up share capital/registered capital the Company

HEk b

Ordinary Others
ZBWER
ZEAE O CENE 0 ZERwE ZEAE ZERAR
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 and 2018
Bl00E %00 - = 100%
HKS1,200 HK$1,200 = = 100%
- - RAR30000000% 55300000007 05%

Hit—) (=)
= —USS30,000,000  US$30,000,000 95%
(Note ) (Note i)

E Wi - = 100%
HKS2 HKS? = - 100%
£410 #4517 - - 100%
Usst USs1 = = 100%
i3 i N - - 100%
HKS? HKS2 = = 100%
FE0000E  E£500007C - = 100%
0S$50,000 1S950,000 = = 100%
w0000z B%100007 - = 100%
HKS10,000 HK$10,000 = = 100%
W8T i T - - 100%
HK$7 HKS7 = = 100%
i3 o i - - 100%
HKS? HKS2 = = 100%
3 i - - 100%
HKS? HKS2 = = 100%
£410 #4517 - - 100%
Uss1 Uss! = - 100%
£2107 F2107 - = 100%
USs10 Uss10 = = 100%
E T - = 100%
HKS2 HKS? = - 100%

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2019 and 2018

Principal activities

BEER
Tnvestment holding

VESIS YN

Property investment and
development

R

Provision of nominee services

BEER

Investment holding

VESIE
Property investment

BEER

Investment holding

(i3
Financing
(44

Financing

RESBRY
Provision of management
services

RESBRS
Provision of management
services

(i T

Management consultancy

BEER

Investment holding

BEER

Tnvestment holding
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

= © U 15 B8R 18 Bt 5T (@)

BEZZ-HAEAA =T HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

33. HEW)EA 6N )

34.

33.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

YL ]
. . BHRA /0
WA 4H CHITRIERA /IR WAL
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered
Place of incorporation/ capital held by
Name of subsidiary registration/operation Issued and paid up share capital/registered capital the Company Principal activities
Wik !
Ordinary Others
S LI S L
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 and 2018
AEREERAR EEELHE EZAVH £51T - = 100% R
High Grand Investments Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 USS! - = 100%  Investment holding
AHABHERAT it i3 AV BT - = 100% WERE
Move On International Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS1 HKSI - - 100%  Property investment
Mzt - Notes:
— -~ FE B ST 2 b R N S i B R A i. Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast”)

PR & (T Jb 5 A WD) 5 M 2 p S & 1
/N R | A 1 il L N I o
30,000,000 G © b %t i T AR 4R BE i Bk 2 5%
430,000,000 G )G A< 45 M BT /2 2 AR - R
T o 7% 42 [ 48 [7] 2 A 48 45 3k 5t A IE 95% Fl
T EE -

— - BRE DA BR 2 A KGlory Diamond Inc. i 4
ANF HEBEREWEA S > A MR A A
Mg -

1

AR LA W R T A WY S R A AR
W 2 A R 2 AR N R M B A R o SIERR A
B 1 HE A 8 2 B R A R R AR 2

PO~ A B A A AR A% AR AR T R A ] I ]
I AT AT ] G5 i 2 o

ik 15 300 4 SR A% W e

BoFE—LENH mE R AR
RO AR I HE T 2 AR B P R A
T~ IR R AN DI B IR I TR AR
A SRE IR R L LR (T 4T B
JRy 1) T S7 i o A 0 B e (% T
W) o MR A B R B
DI B[R] A 2 P L B o I 2E N )
BB B )R 7% 3 LR A R IR A T
H B TSRy S e 1 A — R R SR A
O M SIS R ST R AN b K
YIEE NG B E R R B SR
15 FA A 0 B -t o Sl AR RE B RT M A5 A
B o — LRI R A AR H A
F-NAFENRAT—HHAE -

SE-NEZZ-NEEER | ENEEA RS A

34.

established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture. Beijing Longfast had a registered capital of US$30,000,000. The
amount of US$30,000,000 disclosed in both years above represents capital
paid by the Group. However, the Group’s entitlement to share the profit
and net assets in Beijing Longfast was agreed to be at 95%.

ii. Other than Dynamic (B.V.I.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which are
wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held by the
Company indirectly.

ii. The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

iv. None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year, or at any time during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

In August 2019, as informed by the liquidation committee of
Zhen Wah, pursuant to relevant laws, regulations and rules of
the PRC applicable to Zhen Wah, Zhen Wah entered into a
Land Resumption Compensation Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Nanshan Administration of Shenzhen Municipal Bureau of
Planning and Natural Resources (the “Bureau”). Pursuant to the
Agreement, the Bureau and Zhen Wah have agreed to arrange
a land swap. A portion of the land held by Zhen Wah will be
surrendered by Zhen Wah to the Bureau in return for a piece
of land in Tung Kok Tau to be granted by the Bureau without
additional land premium payable. The remaining portion of
the land held/occupied by Zhen Wah will be surrendered by
Zhen Wah to the Bureau with compensation under negotiation.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 11 September 2019.



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
h F 81 5 fg 2

HAE¥EH CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BEAHZ=THILEE
Year ended 30 June

“E-fE CE-AE DEbE DT AE ZZhE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
BEFIL BT BEFFr #BEFr WX
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

A Revenue 103,437 103,870 101,762 113,030 106,206
AN A A Profit for the year attributable to

JE A 3 1 the owners of the Company 101,586 95,085 115,591 126,125 48,730
B RAEEA A Basic earnings per share

(B M) (Hong Kong cents) 463 4.7 514 56.0 215
I 0 2 A Diluted earnings per share

(B M) (Hong Kong cents) 45 40.7 48.8 53.0 205

B EE - AR CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

BRAA=1+H
At 30 June

SE-RE SFoNE SF-bE DFAE DRk

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
BT EWTFT ENFr BFTL B¥TL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ESE VS Property, plant and equipment 2,012 1,743 2214 1,859 2,431
BREME Investment properties 2,000,101 1,926,240 1,990,736 2,136,283 2,051,020
HESERES Interest in a joint venture 94,467 71,570 86,974 80,205 93,605
BERERK Amount due from a joint venture 239,924 235,184 218,549 238,283 215,712
HATHRH A 3K Pledged bank deposits 2278 = = = -
T & Current assets 289,743 291,995 314,882 343,286 319915
HAh & Other asset 1,521 1,404 1,382 1,423 1,364
BEME Total assets 2,630,046 2,528,136 2,614,737 2,801,339 2,684,047

ANrl A NEMRER  Equity attributable to the owners

of the Company 1,974,794 1,902,346 1,978,078 2,148,998 2,095,656
I 22 I 1 AR 2 Non-controlling interests 36,572 34,154 34,731 38,186 36,862
A4 Total equity 2,011,366 1,936,500 2,012,809 2,187,184 2,132,518
WITEH Bank loans

— R —E R R — due after one year 164,592 = 135,520 127,759 -
EIEHLIH A Deferred tax liabilities 282,051 283,573 302,625 322,594 293,795
BYEE RN g Long-term rental deposits received = = 20,033 14,315 15,175
TE) A& Current liabilities 172,037 308,063 143,750 149,487 242,559
ERE e Total liabilities 618,680 591,636 601,928 614,155 551,529

2,630,046 2,528,136 2,614,737 2,801,339 2,684,047
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD

PFRrisB®M* iR

W_E—NEANA=ZTH IRAHFEY

EZFEMT

Location

ﬁﬁk&%ﬁﬁ fEE
B[

SR RER

ME TR

W E

MR =

R A

Unsold portion of

Phase II and Phase I1I

of Chaoyang Garden

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

MoZE—NENA=ZTH FIAREY

EZRMMT

i ¥

Location

T3 N R

i

I ST [

HI7 HE N T ILE

S I I S 3 7 A

LHEEC T CRR T =R )
Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14)

West Tower, Eton Place

No. 69 Dongfang Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

R N R 3L A

Jb =

i B I %

HE R

S T R S R
& =R TEE S0

Car parking spaces in Phase I, II, I1I
and commercial portion of Phase 111
No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

Residential

o 48 v ¢
Y

Approximate
site area

b

N/A

SE-NEZZ-NEEER | ENEEA RS A

Particulars of properties held for sale at 30 June 2019:

T R
i B 49
Approximate
developed
gross floor Stage of
area completion

B B V& 95%
9,699 77 IR

B

19,143°F 5 IR

B LREB RS M A

Group’s
interests

Phase II:
9,699 sq.ft.
Phase I1I:
19,143 sq.ft.

Completed  95%

% T
H#l

Expected date
of completion

AR

N/A

Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2019:

jik73 ALIT4EH
Usage Lease term
b N ekt
Office Medium
[EEVEEI S Gkl

Commercial/Car-parking Medium
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